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2. Statement of Variance: progress against targets
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3. Evaluation and analysis of students’ progress and achievement





































































READING: DATA REPORTI NG

OT. dats states thal 18.7% of af studen’s Need Supporl, 37.1% are Warking Towards, 2303 are Al Expecialen, and 14.3% are Absye.
OT.) data states that 16.7% of &l fenale s'udents Need Support. 3208 sre Working Tewards, 34 8% are At Expeclation, and 16.7% are
Abave,

OTd data slatas that 20.5% of 2l mzle stadents Meed Supporl. 42 055 are YWorking Towands, 25.5% are A Expeciaton, snd 12.0% a'e Abdve.
OT.) data slates that 8.8% of all Cock lefands Maor {Fema'e) students Need Suppaet. 36 8% are Wodking Towards. 33.63% are A' Expectation,
ard 15.8% are Abgve,

OTJ data slates tha! 27.1% of 2| Ceek Islands Maor {hale} studenis Need Suppon. 33.33% are Werking Towards, 35.57% are Al Expectaten,
and 5.2% are Abose.

OTJ data sla'es thal 23.1% of 21 Incian (Fema'e) suderts Need Supporl. 31.23: are Werking Towards, 2193 are A! Expeciation, ard 18.83:
are Above.

OTJ data sa'es tha! 8.335 of all Indian [Male) shudenis Need Support. 41.7% are Working Towards, 25.0% ae At Expeciation, snd 26.0% are
Abava,

OTJ data 5'a'es that 1463 of 2" Maerd (Famalz) stedenis Need Suppart. 31.6% are Workirg Towards, 37,35 2 At Expectation, and 16 6%
are Abave,

OT. data states that 23.8% of &' Wagi (Ma'e) students Need Suppon. 43 5% ave Wedkdng Trwards, 23.1% are At Expactaton, and 5.5% are
Above,

OTJ data slates that 19545 of '] Sarrean (Female) studanis Need Suppat. 25.83% are Workng Towanda, 35.7% are At Bxpectztion, ard
16.1%: a'e Above.

OT.) data states 11at 16.7% of '] Sarmaan (Ma%e) sudents Nead Supped, 45.1% - Waeking Towards, 28.5% are AF Expectatisn, and 11.8%
are Abave,

OYJ dafa states that 23.7% of &' Tongan {Famale) students Need Support. 20.9% gre Wordie g Tosards, 36.5% ae At Expecialion, 2nd
10.5% a'e Above

OT. da'a s'a'es that 20.5% of &'l Tongan {Wfale) sladerts Need Supporl, 47.7 5 e Wondng Towards, 27.3°5 are At Expectation, and 4.5%
are Abae.

READING: DATA ANALYSIS

It certain'y appeats loaking al fase figuras, that teachars are startng to rake changss to how they record OTJ3 bazed 01 the wom that has
been Fappen g 2round interpredng data.

The dfata sujgests that deachers are more wling 11 back tha't own judg ments rather tren $2 13 conservalive in bneiv esimal 2ns aboul
sludent a0y

The read 1 data ia vary inte-est g because. awoss e schotl, [ oar see abol 433 "Ator Anove” in tzacher OT M dala, Vhen bakrg &
glardardzed da'a, | carnatfrd sivilar figures within e.asTTl2 data. For Year T data, when yau kea¥ st studenls wha atg 48 and abeva. vy
getata st B4 Sriany. when youd look al studerts who 22 4P and 2bove, you cet to atout 28-27%, Powe jer, i you laok al fas st.denisin
gach yeat group althe 3A mamk, yau find aboul 175 of &l Year 7 studeals and 15%: of &'l Year § siudan's 2t that level. [T you 1hen cong der
trztiRase studeals may have had 8 poor test resuls or a gh runnir g record Soore, 178 poss B'e that some 1zachers bave made the cal that,
gien thougn bess sladents are gk by balowy the feel for thei- yean, hay hase decidsd to mask them as "At Expectation.’ This reans that
e-asTTle rest'ts do nat aroratizaly ivval date e tegchers’ OTs.

Compating this wln PAT datz, | can sse trat 373 of Year 7 stedenls have 4 3222 scove aba g B for PAT Read ng Comprenersian, whizh
eaquates o a quristtum lavel of roughy 4B, Tr's fure edds cred B by to the 12azhars OTJs,

Forozr & datain PAT, Ih2 madian sca's score is 550, whon equates 12 4 corevtum 208 of 4P This maars that 503: of Year § sodents
have a curnomam lzgtof aound 4P and abova,

In shot the oachers' OTJs %0 tead o ae credic'a. 1oan fnd e dense suppotiag the fizure of 350 A or Above forread ng

Lastyear, we had 335 "M ¢ Abaa” far readirg. so17s iz nat a rad szl charge from whal weve Fadin e past However, gien e fazt that
1055 of oo populston is 04 siedenls, vou ase looking at potant 8y 42-50 students whass OTle ia my cprnen, baver reflect e rabi7ly rafer
than a conesenvawse estmation

I 541 feel there nesds te be wors dame arourd mak 6y sure OTJs ave consisisnt 22ro5s (he year because navrg great OTJs alithe end gf e
year dozaTlreslly rean avyn e to anbady eatepl pazstily e anc the teathen Fora siudenivho bas bad repaits that are avedy harsh
aruf has tawail @) year ‘o 22 good one [mnclsute lbatkas avery postve effect on studes! engagement puer e course of the yeer,
Givantra fact 1nat we have soma shodenls indizate in form {zackar su~veys that teachars do nalca'ebrate tReTiRaming of ashizvamien's,
does 153 ¢'ay inlo koa stadants feel sbo ol ne' leamning ava thelr lsschers’ Lodarstand ng o ther orogress?

| gven il amadl e qasstor, Wy teacker knoss me weli " and re"ssten varathe varate dxta we gel'on b |5 il concanvatia 1na students
are |acking &t reparls thal 2ve cvad conzsnvat e, wiln nastsiops it & to) e3sy, and rea' 5993 han e teacher dossr 't fuly ungerstand
tham?

haced“eentidsas lwant to exp'are i1 2025 10ty and address s ssue Dwsu'd lee o deielan 2 5 stem whare Year T OTJs are carrizd
irto tha raxtyear [dono b s e Tremave teather responsiciy - in fazh [ Hhink dwilintreaze il

| peszoag' y v e s impatant s Fave consis'stt OTUs, ot te make our restts 150k Petter bl 55 lne sluz2rt bas mare cong:gen, are
seewtate fasdazch ana e leamric 5. Therg is na risen for & teachsr bo suppress siodentresuls st bn make iz can rack’ng sheat |2
beter Teaskers read to bs avare that ey wanl o show e mpart of el practize e esiwayoeorg lkalis ergagraw’th



On a separa's no’e, given all the talk about currizu’um and curficulum expestations, what | fnd fascinatng about comparing our data to
national data is that we have roughly 50% of studants at or abave tne 4P level, Yet, lhe national populaton median PAT scoeg is 60,4, whizh
wiuld place 30% of the national population in the £P- A4 teritory.

Whal does that tell us aboul currictlum expectalons and the alignment of PAT 1o the curtulum? | supposa it makes sense as when you
Wb Pk abost? it that would match up with a bell curve for the population. But, it still makes me wordder sbout lne actssl expeciaions
within the test. Because, if you're going Lo say tha! 50% of the county are either ‘at or ‘abave’ eumicu'um expestatons, yel we have all ths
Lalk abavt kiwi ¥ids nof achieving relatve 1o either sotielsl enpectations o lests e PISA, dazs hal mean our cumiculumiis oo easy? lwould
imagirie that ane persen in partiou’ar reading this would say yes”,,,

Aninteresting observation lrom our lestng data is thal while students make expected progress in terms of sca'e score shifts for vocabutary,
this pragress doesn'l exlend fo reading comprahension. | believe th's may be parly because masy shidents don't put in 1heir best effot during
ihe tests.

Anecdo’al fesdback gathered during cover sessions suggests bal students feal mcre mentally engaged in lerm fhree compared o term four,
Wihen | asked simple questons lice, Whose brain works Better in term three?” and “Whase bralt works Betfer i ferm four? " the maonity of
students raised Ine'r hands for ferm thees. \Win"e infiarmal, this fredback aligns with the idea that te'm three might be a batter ime for testisg
Adlustng the lestng schedu's could have a postve impact o cur data - not jus! to improve the resJ'ts but tz ensJre that lhe eforl suderts
pult inta PATS matches the value of the insights we gain fram them, Since PATs are a signifcant financal iveestment, (s imporlant te maxirise
the qualty and relahi'ity of the data they provida.

Integraling leashe- tracking data into Edge could provide batter insigh's into runn'ng record data, particutary in terms of chionlogica age.
Witrile ' net geerdy concemed with the specic detai's, such as mearirg of visual ermors within running records, 1am interssed in
undarstanding how much weigh' teachers assion te running reco-d tests comparad to carrculum-based assessmants.

Thet s2'd, implement ng @ changs ke th's is nola quick process. [want 10 have a cear understanding ¢Fwhat the tarstbon woukd koo |
be'are making any adjustmerts. Tr's Wil be ar area of nvestigaten throughout 2025, with a potential rol.out planned for 2026, There may
230 be 244 Tong” henefls fo Faving tracking decuments and otber reportng funictions integ-ated irte Edge. | suspect theve is uniapped
furctanatiy in the platfoem that could sheantise pracesses as more data is central sed. Over time, Lh's co.'d maka gu- systems more efficien)
amnd ease o use.

Clean Reading Data Analysis and Reporting

The clean PAT dals shows that studan’s make progress 25 they move through tha gchoal,

Howsever, there is a natzeal’s d'p in pedemansce in Term 4, where some stidents shoa na progress, desps ga's ev Jent in Temn 1 o Le
P i Ty e,

doving e PAT testng 1o the end of Term 3 shauld improve testing cord tians and better refact studenl progress.

In Term 1, 2023, 152 cobor was 9.2 pain's betingd ke nal ;al papy'ston, with 2a average coneulum fevel o around 3R indicating thay ware
12 monthz bel'rd thei- riztioral peas.

By Term 4. 2023, tha gzpwdened to 13.9 points, with an average siore of 46.5 (curreutan g vel 48). Tha nationa pepulation hed a score of
g4 [mid 4P martaning the gzo of atfeast & monts.

I Term 1, 2024, T2 gap naoa =d to §.1 poin's, with & cohot socre of 52.3 (scld 48;, despe min'mal teashing dug 3 ho! dayz ard
oft-imelsble actitas.

By Tem 4, 2024, 1% cohorl's score raze to 55 3 (m'd Level 4, Eut 1 g2a widaned sga’n to 117 po's.

Tkiz pattem of undz performancs in Term 4 testng reir forces tha ‘maorlatsa of shisic g the tes's to better razk Year & laavers a-Hisvemenls.
The Mach cokert shoas & simlar trend, w th the ciassst performanca fa the na’ enal populat an cocarng in Term § of 2024,

The lowes! quarli's For M3cn shuden’s shows massive eoeelzralon, ofen surpassng the ratongl poolatan.

This suppeds the neary that sttendarce s a key driver of progress atine schacl especiany for W86 heamers. Compar sons betwean schaa)
anendarice and bne e’y lower natior 2l a'tendance for Maod students palow cum oLlum exasctal sas gk gn why Mazn learaas at
Marureaa In'ermed ale acce’ara’e more 1apidiy.

The Pac" s cohan f2'sws the sama patter, wtilve smelest gap 12 the nat a3 pop taton in Teom 1 af 2024

The compressian of the [oazst quar'e is evident, wih these studems azce'srating t0 a1d s1pass™y the ratioral pepustion,

Rezaing vosani'sy daia s'ards out a3 1s orly dateset wizre tz Term 4 perfarmance dio dess net eocur,

trformal sl dent fead e h sLggests e vocan testis easier gue to s Tpler qusstor fazmats,

The vocsblay progress algns with e school s efforls to emphasse vocabuary a0d signzge a-ourd Lhe schag', suppatting thz idza at
exgozuna fowsnds, sayngs of matvalens’ quotes improves cutoor gs.

The cohor's mean voca sary s2gre ircreased Fom 43 & (3] to 53.2 (47}, demangiating & st ol a1 ertre curronlam lavel over teo years,
Both K&z and Pacfe pop dlatizns made shif ar vooatulsy progress, ird'eat ng 3 sthecha e ezt rather than gz s confinad o specfs
GrJps.

The shizzin thz ¢izan OT) date where 1465 of studenls were alove comnsukhm evpeciazens n 2323 compared to 5.5 r 2224 reflact ke
imgact ot 2 werk Card'cs ard | hava dove around cosrolm expeetators erd effactvaly gaug ro sudenl progress n quiced read 13
l2ze0ms. Thiz trerdis par aulzrfy evidertinths "at expactatior” category whete 83,350 of suderts ware st arpesial onin 2023, ifcreas g ta
IEY G 2024 - ashitclacurd 1235 bl ave T improvemert is [3rgely 02 to teachers 220 rg mave cordent n backing ther cfassrezm
ebsenszlans ard making coiiecions bets 200 staneand Fod data and actaz! shudanl perfoarar 2e. |seems th s char gz is mare abaat koo
teschers are mierueTag &0 aseess Ty shudent ectizvemert inan a diamatc b in &t adert periormane et

























Clean Writing Data Analysis and Reporting

| am most pleased with the writing data cempared 1o all other areas. This is bacause, in the past, there was littls &l giment bataeen teacher
OTJs and tao’s ke P2CT Haw, the writ ng da'a shows meaningful trends emerging across different groups, such as by gendar or ethniciy,
which is pracsely what we need bo in‘orm {argeted imerventions. Previously. the data felt fike an unusable "blab,” but with improved
assessment lools, we can now identiy and acl on specifc arsas of need.

The use of ba'ter taols, | ke 25Tl with cut scores, has alkwwed tzachers Lo track student progress more efechively within curmicufum levels.
Th's & significant becayse sludents trpicalty mase finer proqressions aver a yearof b rather than frequenty maving up an enire curizylum
level, In the "at expectaton” categary, we saw a shift from 25.3% of Yea 7 sludents maetng expectations in 2023 1o 37 5% in 20124
Addticna'ly, whle the “working towards" group was 375 in 2023 and is now 4%, in 2024, the reg) progress Les in the reduckon of sladen's in
lhe "needs support” category. In 2023, 25% of studen’s wete in “reeds SLpporl,” it this has dropped to jus! 125 in 2024, Th's indcates that
teachers are more confdent in maving students 2crass cricial theaskolds, parteulady from “working traards® 4o "at expeghation "

Th's progress is snficant iof only for e students but a'sa fer gur teaching packoes. Teachers ara now moe wi'ling b mive students
fosward ard make confidert, evidence-based Judgmenits. As | mentioned in the introduciion, Inis shiftis ortical because teachers are mare
likely o selact challenaing riew s'eps for leamers when the ¥ eleaty understand where studen's sTw/th'n the curticulum,

Th's imprasemant addrezses (e “botlensckicg® problem dscussad in earier teperis. Staderts are nq longer hitng a glass cell g duatatre
lazk of g s2hty asseasment taa's tg pinpaint spacific areas b davelspenent witn Leval 4.
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In-Class Support {ICS) Funded Students

In-Class Supparl {ICS) funding conlinues to play a vital role in providing targeled assistance for students who
require additional supporl but do nat meet the criteria for Ongoing Resourcing Scheme (ORS) funding. This
funding is allocated 1o supporl the employment of Eearning Assistants, ensuring these studenls can access
the curricufurn &nd thrive in the classroom envircnment. One of the key advantages of ICS funding is ils
transferability, as it follows students for an entire year, even if they transition between schools during that
period.

Lewking ahead, it has again been agreed that IC5 funding will be given to the Primary Schools within our
Kahui Ako. However, we anticipala the possibilily of receiving funding for new enrolments who were granted
IG5 funding in the [aiter par of 2024 as Year Six sludenis. This may include students joining vs from both
our conlribuling schools and the wider area.

Should thizs be lhe case, these students will receive their allocated hours of support and an Individual
Education Plan {IEP) will be established in the early slages of nexl year to ensure their needs are met
comprehensively.

Ongoing Resource Scheme {ORS) Students

Ongoing Resource Scheme (ORS) funding is designated for students who have the highest ongoing nseds
for supporl within an educational setling. This funding enables students 1o parlicipate alongside lheir peers
in a learning environment, with the assistance of a teacher aide for a varying number of hours based on each
studenl's specific needs. Sludents qualifying for QRS are categorised inte one of three levels: Very High
Meeds, High Heeds, and Moderate Needs. The level of funding suppor is determined by the student’s needs
in areas such as leamning, hearing, visian, mobility, language use, and social communication. Te qualily for
CRS funding based on learning needs, students must exhibit learning capabilities equivalent to half their age
or less. A signilicant benelit of ORS lunding is thal, once awarded, il remaing wilth the student until they
reach the age of 21, ensuring sustained suppor not jusl al Manurewa Intermediate bul also throughout their
aducational journey.

To finish the year we had three studenis who received ORS Funding. These are the same three male students
fTwa in Year 8 and one in Year 7) from ihe Mid Year Learning Support Reporl. We have alzo recently applied
for ORS funding for a departing Year 8 fernale siudenl and we are hopeful of a successlul application to
supporl her needs 25 she heads to Manurewa High School in 2025.

Student RL, a Year & male student has had a tremendous year with many teachers commenting on his
increased engagement and enthusiasm towards learning. His funding entitled him to 12 hours of leacher aide
time per ten week term. This was used across a range of subjects as well as his inclusion in Mumicon. [t was
great 1o celebrate the progress RL has made during his 1ime at M|, During his final IEP we were able ta
acknowledge the achievernenl of many of his geoals including: writing sentences using fullstops, read
vocabulary lists with increasing difficulty, parlicipate in "SPRIMNG into Math’ whilst learning some of the two,
five and 1en timeslables, managing himself to be at class on lime and leaving only when given permigsion
wilh an out of class pass. He also shared that his goal in life was to one day own his own business and be
CEO to be super rich and sell houses. We wish RL all the best as he continues his schoaling journey at
James Cook High School.


















how shy they felt. A few of them were embarrassed 1o be parl of this pogramme
because of being stereotyped as being “dumb”. That iz what their own peers
would say to them. But | made sure that the kids understood that getting the extra
support maant that they would get batter and progress faster than ihey have ever
before. My treasures understand now thal being & High Flier is not only a privilege
for them bul a blessing for me. As ime has qgone by, they have become a lot
more comfarlable in their groups and feel as if they belong. | assure my lréasures
that Room 31 is a2 safe space for them and that in this room it is OKAY to maks
mistakes. | am here to help them and give them opporunities to grow 1he
confidence they need to give something a goad go.

Student Volce

AD {Room 30, Boy - Y7)
| enjoy coming to High Fliers because we lfearn easier work and have heaps of
fun."

FA (Room 30, Girl - Y8}
I ke coming to High Fliers because of the new programme we get to do this
yaar. i 15 way baller han whal we did fast year.”

KH {Room 30, Gid - ¥7)
“t have a funny group thaf always makes me smile and laugh when we are doing
our work, | like fearning atiout the vowels and olher stulf.”

CA (Room 30, Boy - Y7
ke coming to High Flers because [learn new things.”

AH (Room 78, Boy - Y8)
“High Fliers is coo! because we do work | understand and Mr 5J helps me.”

Z4 [Room 78, Girl - Y8)
°t have been in High Fliers for two years and | always fike coming here because
e work in ofass 15 loo hard. Bul here s a ol easier and my group i5 coof.”

ES (Room 73, Girl - Y7)
“Hearnt about apen and closed syllables and how to find how many there are in
a word.”

PP {Room 73, Boy - Y8}
“I fike hanging with Mr 5J and my group cause it makes me feef smarler and |
fearn faster.”

TE {Room 73, Boy - Y7}
“High Fliarg is 50lid because | get o learn new things with my friend {(FP} and |
ask heaps of gueshions.”

KA {Room 27, Boy - Y7}
Deal is my favourite suliject at school cause my group supporls each olher and
Mr 5 has a lat of energy.”

MA {Room 3, Girl - ¥7)
*| ike reading and speffing with my group.”

AR [Room 9. Bay - Y7)
I ke when we walk mt class and have fo dance bhefore we stan. 1 like pulting on
Mr 505 coslumes cause i makes e feel cool and makes me more confidant fo
fearn.”
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LA {(Room 9, Boy - Y8}
‘Mr SJ and my group are ahvays happy and it makes me happy to he heme.”

MA (Room 9, Boy - Y7)
°f like that we gel to share aboul our weekend and hear whal my friends fike o
do. Mr &4 makes the work sound and look easier for me.”

TU {Room 9, Girl- ¥7)
I didn 't like coming here in Term One cause F would gel mocked but now | dont
care because | learn heaps and my group makes me happy.”

TA {Room 12, Girl - Y8B)
"My High Fliers group is the best. | fearnf more this year and ! iike the new books
beltar”

EG {Room 75, Boy - ¥7)
I ike coming here because I'm with a smafter groug and Ity my best.”

P& (Room 75, Boy - Y8)
| ke to read and wiile.”

AL {Reom 75, Gir - Y7)
°f fike coming fo Mr 5Js class hecause he has oool pholos and helps me with my
reading.”

DA {(Room 11, Boy - Y¥)
Learning vilh Mr 54 is exciting and fun. My group is the best!”

SH (Room 11, Girl - Y7}
°f feal confidan! with my group and fove having fun.”

AM {(Room 28, Girl - Y7)
“t fearnf how fo say the vowels and fhat it is imponant,”

JU {Room 26, Boy - Y7}
"My besf imes af High Fliers is when we sing songs and do our work at the same
tima.”

DA [Room 4 , Bay - Y7)
‘My group is always working hard and helping me.”

DE (Room 4, Boy - Y1)
“f ke coming io Room 31 because i's gof good villes and f fike the work cause !
undaratand iL"

MO (Room 4, Boy - Y8)
| fike when we faugh and have fun because it makes the work better.”

This year for iDeal we were able 1o t251 25 sludents both at the start of the year and at the end of the year.
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High Fliers - Numicon Feedback 2024

Feedback

Karinilo Seuvala

This year, i was introduced to Humican, and it quickly besame ane of the most
impactful teaching 1oofs I've had the pleasure of using. Its hands-on, visual
approach to teaching math has completely lransfarmed how the students engage
with the subject. Al the starl of the year, many of the studenis had difficulty
underslanding place values and were unsure about basic number concepls.
However, thanks to Numicon's siruclured and visual method, they made great
progress in this area. The coloured shapes and patterns helped sludents connect
absiracl ideas to concrete visual aids, making it much easier for them to grasp.

Throughout the year, the improvements have been impressive. Sludenls who
initrally strugoled with place values now have a strong understanding of the
concepl. They can confidenlly idenlify tens and ones, and they understand ihe
structure of numbers in our place value systermn. This improvement is also evidant
in their assessment scores, wilh many students perdorming belter than they did
when they first ook the test. Their abililies in basic facls have also greatly
improved. YWhere they once struggled wilh simple addilion and subtraction, they
now sclve problems with more ease and confidence.

I made sure 1o adapt my lessons to lhe different learning needs of the class. For
those who needed exira supporl, | offered one-on-cne practice wilh Numicon
materials. For sludents who were ready for more challanges, | provided more
advanced problems that still used the same concepls but were applied in different
ways. The flexibility 1o adjusl my teaching and meet the individual needs of each
student has been crucial to their success. Ithas been incredibly rewarding o see
lheir progress and to watch their confidence and inlerest in math grow.

Carlogs Tuala

Malh Learning this year has achieved great resulis by using Numican, a
pragramme designed to make learming basic math skills easier and more hands-
on. By focussing on key areas fike addition, subtraction, mulliplication, and
division, the programme helped students build a strong understanding of math
while boasting their confidence.

Mumicon's visual and hands-on approach made math concepts simpler and
easier 1o understand. Studanis leamed 1o see and fee!l the numbers, which
helped them connect with the ideas in a way that made sense to them. This
approach afso gave students a sense of achievement as they noticed their own
progress, making math feel less imimidating and more enjoyable.

Chverall, ihe programme has displayed how using the right lools and creating a
supportive environment can make a big difference in helping students feel
confident and capable in math. Furthermore, when the time is dght, | hope to
becomes more involved in other programmes that supporl diverse learners. I'm
excited about the chance to grow, learn new teaching strategies from new
experiences, and help make a real difference in helping our kids succeed.
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Siudent Vaoice

TH (Room 15, Boy -Y7)
I find Numtican cool and enjoy meefing new people in Numicon. My basie facts
have improved, and | feel ke | understand place values a bit belfer now, which
helps me with my math.”

NH {Room 15, Girl - Y7}
“I've noliced that my basic facts have gotten better, and | feg! more confident wilh
place values now. Mr 5 makes the lessons coal and fun and he is always fair ™

0¥ (Room 69, Boy - Y7)

“I've learnl my imesfables and different ways of solving them. I've also improved
in my basic facls and have a beller understanding of pface vafues, which makes
malhs easfer for me.”

OT {Room 9, Girl - Y7)

“t's cool. f am learning new sirategies, and I'm getting belter with my basr facts.
! also understand place values more clearly aow, which helps me work ol
problems faster.”

MFP (Room 28, Girl - Y7}

I find Numiicon fur and & fitlle bit hard, bul I've learned new math skits. My basic
facts hava improved, and I'm gelling belter at place values, which makes math a
Git easter.”

Li {(Room 3, Boy - ¥B)

s good. | ke math. [ learn new ways lo solve things. My basic facls have
improved this year. | lite Numicon because Mr 5 is funny and he never cheals in
the games.” '

MT [{Room 23, Boy - Y8)

“ fike it hecause | have fun. Mr leaches us how to do malh He taught us new
math games using cards and | like versing other whanau and winning because
Rimu fs the hesf "

5C (Room 30, Girl - Y7}

| enfoy playing fun games. IF helps with my maths, and I've gotten belter al my
basic facts Mr 5 has hefped me with learning about place vafues by using shapes
as an example.”

L¥ {Room 20, Girl - Y7)
Ffind i hard, buf it is fun though. f've gotten better at my basic facls, and I'm
starling to undersiand place values beller, which helps me with the probfems.”

GA (Room 20, Boy - Y&)
‘Numico is fun. and it's pretly cool 've improved my basic facls, and Mr S fels
us have fun. [ like versing other groups in maths. s fun.”

SF {Room 28, Boy- Y7)

*flaarn about numbers, and it is funt. 've afso gotten beller af my basic facls and
have a stronger understanding of place values, which makes solving problems
gasier.”

CL {Room 28, Girl - Y7}
Nurmicon is fun, and | fike the games! f've leamed more abotd skip counting and
now have a beller underslanding of pface values, which helps with my
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calculafions.”

IL {(Room 33, Girl - Y8}

“Hove the games because [ sometimes win. The math work we do i3 cool_ | fove
fearning even though i's bard for me, but with Mr Tuafa's help he made it a bit
easier for me fo understand! | need fo do more work al home so 1 get betler and
befter”

SF {Roormn 33, Boy - Y7)

“ love the games! Everyone foves the games! Bul | loved learning my division's
basic facls. It was hard af first bul now I'm fnding it easy. | just need to sfowly
caunt and check my answers.”

JN {Room 33, Boy - Y8)
It was fun because | can finally fearn &t my own pace. | ke doing my division
because Mr Tuala alivays helps us.”

LL {Room 33, Girl - ¥7)

Nt was okay. I'm stilt finding it hard o do some math but because Mr Tugfa helps
us il has become easier o understand. { just need o believe thal [ can do i like
fie always says.”
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Working logether in Kahui ako space to identify trends and needs using dala. Then uging this space
to provide FLD for Kahui ako and collaborate on Kahor ake projeels to improve sludeni outcomeas.,
Evalualing any learning for tsachers around rath suppar for Tier 2 and 3 learnars.

Supporl with any training neaded for teachers or support staf.

Any supporl from our Pacific or Mapn team neaded
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3. Mid Year Review

Area of LSC Focus

LSC at Manurewa Intermediate

Supporting teachers and
students through building an
inclusive school or Kura and
cluster environment where all
students parlicipate, progress
and make successiul
fransitions.

The LSC supporls the implementation of an inclusive environment based
on the pringiples of Universal Design for Learning. The inleniion is for
teachers 1o have a common understanding of how best o meet the needs
of all students in their classrooms,

Support includes;

» working with classroom teachers, other professionals and parents to
ienlify students’ needs as early as possible and to respond promplly
with the right suppor.

» supporing teachers with observalions and assessmenls 1o be able
to idenlify areas of suppont needed.

s providing students and teachers wilh evidence-based slrategies,
praclices and guidance about what will make a difference for their
sludenis.

+ working with the leadership team, teachers, learning assislants and
SEMCo to develop capabitity through iraining and professional
development,

¢« working with schpols and whanau of students with leaming
difficulties who transilion during 1he year to ensure relaticnships are
built and 1hare is clear communication and understanding of needs.

o liaise wilh lhe previous school to gather data and informalion for
sludents who transilion during the term.

s supporting and working wilh a small group of sludents in class to
help achieve their lzarning goals.

o working wilh 1he leadership team to ensure all students, including
gifted sludents, receive appropriale supporl fo enhance their
leaming and progress.

s supporting classreom teachers and students to access online
assessments for Humanities and Mathematics (e-asTTle f PAT's).

In Terms Three and Four supporl included;

s working with local secondary and coniribuling primary schools to
plan a transilion pathway for those studenls who will benefit from this
support.

o assisl lhe lransilion process for those sludents.

+ share current assessment dala and Individual Education Plans with
secondary schools.

Te Kahui Aka o Manurewa

Az parl of the Learning Suppor Team of Te K3hui Ako o Manurewa, lhe
LSC is:

« cooniributing to the identifcation of learning suppor needs across the
school or Kura and cluster through the provision of tools and advice
to leachers.

» building relatisnships with contribuling agencies - Social Workers,
Ministry of Education, Resource Teachers (RTLB), private providers
ele.

+« embedding a culture of collaboration bebween the LSC and leaching
profassionals where different approaches are openly observed and
shared.

» hosting forlnightly meelings at Manurewa Intermediate that include:

= digcussing cases braught to the L5C and SENCo panel for
suggeslions as to the next sleps for refemals, learning
intervenlions, MoE support and other agency referrals.

43



o sharing what's working and what's nol working across the
Kahui Ako.

= supporting and sharing experise with others ie learning
interventions, planning etc.

a  supporting the transition process and documentation set up
with local high schools and contributing schouols.

z  identifying the impartance of, and adherence to, a commaon
language for the Ministry Learning Supparl Register (LSR)
across the Te Kahui Ako o Manurewa,

Learning Suppor Register
{Te Rito)

Currently, studenis with learning differences andfor difficulties are being
recorded on a new school SH dalabase along wilh students who require
health or behavicural support. This new dalabase is cumentfy being
utilised by the SENCo and LSC as the MoE Learning Supparl Regisler (Te
Rite) has heen delayed with no due rollout date.

24411 - attend hui on how o navigate aur way through Te Rito,

Individual Educaticn Plans/
One Plan and follow up work

The SENCo canvenead Individual Educalional Plan (IEP} meetings in Term
Four far eleven sludents, theirwhanau, form teacher, LAs, Humanities and
Malh teachers. These IEPs were evaluated against the Term 2 geals 1o
ensure students receiving ICS, ORS, MoE and RTLB funding had 1argeted
learning plans 1o meel lheir individual l2aming needs. Goals for Term 1
2015 were wrilten collaboralivefy with the student, their parentsfwhanau
iwho were all inviled 1o attend) and their form, humanilies and math
teachers.

All students were assessed by lhe LSC using the Burl Word Reading
assessment, PROBES or PM Benchmarks, GLoSS (Math), Raven and
McCarthy and Kirk Assessmeni of Oral Language to gain baseline data.
IEPs were cornpleted for:

= Two studenls with 1ICS funding {In-Class Support)

o Three students with ORS funding {Ongoing Resourcing
Scheme} associated with learning and social behaviour
Six students who received funding suppor from MoE &
RTLE

IEP follow up wark involved:

o Sharing the complated IEPs with teachers, SENCo students and
whanau.

o Contact students’ previous schools to oblain  addilional
information.

e Contact Manurewsa High SENCo to support enrolment applications
for out of zone ORs% students.

¢ Organising headphones with microphones for students requiring
access o ‘speech to texd’ and ‘tex to speech’.
Creation of visual imelables .
Identifying possible RTLB or Mok referrals for 2025

LA ]

Referrals 1o Guidance and
Supporl

The profile of lhe LSC within the school has remained high. Teachers are
aware of the work the LSC does and the number of learming referrals
conlinues te ingrease. A SnapShot of general ability acrass the cumiculum
is cormpleted following the allocation of a referral 10 the LBC.
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sludenis who are English Language Learners.
This has involved:

+ [dentifying and confirming all sludents entitled 1o funding under
current MoE guidelines.

» Training twa learning assistants to assist with the assessment of
ELL students using BURT, PROBES writing samples and
instruction following tests,

& Asgsessing and analysing all Year 7 ELL sludents {wilh Learning
Assistant supporl)

a Completing MoE English Language Learning Progressions
malrices for all Year 7 and 8 ELL students.

a  Supporting the creation of a timetable for ELL learners for Terms
Ona and Two.

& Designing an ESOL programme te be run by a learning assistant,

This involved:
o modelling the use of Colourdul Sermantics resource for LAs
x2.
o modelling aspects of the Agility with Scund programme for
LAs w2

o ¢realing an ESOL planring template and working weekly
with 1lhe ESOL leaming assistant 1o plan curriculum
relevant lessons.

a  Supporting the ESQOL learning assistants 1o update McE English
Language Learning Progressions matrices.

Assessment kete

The LSC used evidence-based assessmenis o ensure consistency in
baseline data, identification of learming supporl required by sludents, and
sludeni lgarning progress.
This has involved:

s Use of dyslexic screening tool

¢ iDeal assessments in Reading and Spelling

Relalionship building with
parents and whanau

The LSC has supported parents f whanau to develop an understanding of
the learning support processes avaitable.
Thiz has included:

+ including whanau in IEP meetings 1o ensure they have agency in
their child's learning and key competency goals,

¢ explaining application processes (ORS, paediatric referrals,
Minislry of Education referrals, RTLE, etc.) to whanau,

+ calling whanau after Snapshots have been compleled to galher
Iheir voice, and discuss findings and possible nexl steps. Meeting
ifwhanau are avaitable o do so.

+ niecting with social workers and olher agency personnel.

s providing whanau with relevant support and guidance on the use
of suitable resources and slhategies to supporl their child's
learning.

= home visits to sipn consent forms for sludents to receive addilional
suppor from outside agencies.
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Working with the School
Leadarship Team to ensure
all studenis receive the
apprepriate support to
enhance their learning and
rogress.

LSC has raised learning support related issues that required leadership
invalyement:
s Speed Daling:

o used this time to meet wilth Lines of Teachers for
feedback meetings.

+ Sireamlined Process for referrals ta LSC:

o worked with SENCo to raise the profile of the Guidance
and Support team 10 ensure that students are referred
and get the support they require.

o |EPs incloded Form Teacher, Mzlh and Humanities
feachers in lhe process.

o Paricipated in the Studenl Involved Conference by
providing feedback and feedforward to whanau,
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Kura Reo (ESOL)

Students who are new leamers of English, or coming into an Eaglish-medium environment for the first time
need explicit and extensive teaching of English vocabulary, word forms, senlence and texi siruclures, and
language uses.

Each session of the Kura Reo pmogramme may include:

« An oral language component of listening and speaking, using a range of games and activilies.

s A reading compongnt comprising online book reading (Sunshine Online/EPIC) and listening fo books
being read, followed by related comprehension and word activities. Occasionally Agility with Sound
{(AWS), supporied in class by Humanities teachers has proven to be effeclive in developing phonemic
awareness.

s A writing component of formulating sentences orally, using images, followed by creating sentences.
Sludents write their senlences when they can do so confidenthy.

Twice a year we apply for funding for eligible students. In our first round of funding we applied for 113
students. This number increased by 16 1o 129 in our second round of funding for the second half of the year.

The English Language Learning Progressions {ELLP) scores are a key component of ESOL funding
applicalions in New Zealand. These scores assess sludents’ proficiency in English across four key areas:
listening, speaking, reading, and wriling. The ELLP framawerk is divided inlo stages that reflect a sludent's
pragression, from Foundation (new learners of English - 0) to Stage 4 {approaching mainstream proficiency).
Each stage provides a detailed description of the expected language abilities for that leve!, helping schools
idenlify where students are in their English language development. ELLP scores are crucial for demonstrating
a student's need for addilional tanguage supporl and ensuring that resources are allocated to help them
suceeed in their leaming environment.

Below are some graphs thal show the sludent background, ethnicity of thess students, their country of birlh,
and first language. Also included are graphs showing how the students scored in each of the four key areas.
His clear from the data that sur ESOL sludenis deonstrate more competence in listening and speaking than
they do with their writing and reading. Listening and speaking are lypically acquired mare rapidly because
they involve direct, real-time interaction and exposure in social and classroom setlings. These skills are often
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io see what worked and what didn't. When planning, we'd discuss the ELLP
score sheet and how we could get them to participate or show whal they've
feared, bearing in mind that we get students once a week for less than an
haur.

Although we have sludents who have progressed wilh their levels of learning,
wa also have those who haven't moved or moved much, but the understanding
of the wail time before it happens is important.

Adtending ESOL Cluster meelings has been awesome as we qget 1o share and
take in lips and iricks from olhers. We weren'i far off from whal other schools
implemented but were ahead in some ways, bul slill had room to apply what
we saw would be more efleclive. ESOL has been a privilege to lead and the
challenges have had me on my toes to push for other angles to present the
work. | leck forward to the growlh of this programme and believe with passion,
palience and quidance applied, comes great results.

Organisation

The ESOL programme was organised and implemeanted by Allison and Lilarina.
Itis designed 1o cover lhe seven principles of ESOL inslruclion:

Principle t: Know your learner

Principle 2: ldentity the learning outcomes

Principle 3: Maintain the same leaming cutcemes for all learners

Principle 4: Make the absiract concrete

Pringiple 5 Provide mulliple opporlunities for authentic language use

Principle 6: Ensure a balance behween receplive and produclive language
Principle 7: Include opporlunities for monitoring and self-evaluation

Each ESOL lesson follows a set format allowing for varialion and individual
abilties,

Oral Language (listening and speaking aclivilies): Weekly themes reflect
schoohvide curriculum topics ar activities,

&+ ‘A ship came into the harkour' e.g. students vocalise prior knowladge in
a round robin situation. Topics range from basic coloursffruit/pap
culturelgamingflabels,

» ‘Wrap up convos'
e.g.What parl did you like besl loday?

If you could add any ingradient to your pizza, what would it be?Why'?

=+ Recall and share....__relate to activilies involving curtigulum specific
vocabulary we're leaming each week.

» Turn and talk, then share what your pariner told you. This aclivity was
used as g way to recall the previous week’s learning in a low pressure
way.

L] Vaﬁishing cloze. Reading together in a group repeliively while
removing high frequency words each time.

Reading: {listening 1o and reading texis):

e Alllessons are presenlad bolh onserean (HDML) and on 1he whileboard.
Each has a reading componegni altached to them. Students are
encouraged 1o read (WALT ) alongside the teacher wilh key words and
learning focus discussed in more detail.

« [ngredients and procedure lexl via recipe. Students have been able to
engage with real life learning in the Wharekai this year (pizza making)
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by following a recipe as well as the arder of each instruction during the
procedure,

# Vanishing ¢loze. Reading aloud togelher in a graup repelitively while
removing high frequency words each time, Fluency and phrasing was
aur focus for this activity.

Writing: {writing and reading lexis written)

» Dictation: Each ingredient was given to studenis. Differentiation was
inimduced by asking sludenls ta eilther write the ingredient itsell or the
senlence it was given in.

s Clines. Using synonyms and antonyms an a scale to broaden studenis’
understanding of words and promote their use in their writing. E.q.
Prelty (handsome appealing, graceful)

s Brainstorming was an essential part of our wriling lessons in Term
Three and Four. A simple bubble brainstorm to ensure ordering of
evanls was in place.

+ Reconstructing texts. Alongside ordeding events, recrealing a texi
presentad orally and noling down key words and phrases. Dictogloss
was both challenging and fun for sludenls.

¢ Picture referencing done right. Word/picture associalion evolved into
rewriling the original texd in students’ own words.

Reflection; {think about what has been learnt in the lesson)

+ "1 more at the door’ Siudents share the first thing that comes 1o mind

when | give them a word {lesson relevant}

Check ins during the lessons

Marking books while studenis are in class to check if their

understanding is correct or if certain poinis need lo ba revisited.
it's ahways difficult to check whether the learning from our lessons has been
retained in a way that is meaningful and transferabie to other conlexis. We see
sludents in our programme one time a week, ten times {if we're [ucky) a term.
It is iherefore imperative 1thal we revisit skills taught during ESOL repelitively.

Sludent Analysis
Allison

LB {(Room 25, Girl - Y8) has made amazing progress sacially this year, She has
progressed by half a year from a 5 o a 5.5 reading age.

SP (Room 25, Girl - ¥7) has made excellent progress. She tested out of the
ESOL programme in Term Three and has moved hvo reading ages from B to
10.5.

PG (Room 25, Boy - Y7) fries hard bul reguires one-te-ane and explicil teaching
to progress. He has moved from a 7 to a 7.5 reading age.

JMR (Room 25, Boy - Y8) will progress further when he is able 1o focus for
extended amounis of lime. He has moved from a 7 to a 7.5 reading age.

JA {Room 25, Boy - Y7) has moved half a year frem a 510 a 5.5 reading age.
He would benefil from ona-to-one 1eaching to bring up his basic understanding
of the English language.

LF {Roam 13, Boy - ¥8) has a relaxed alllude towards his learning, however
he has progressed from a 6.5 to an 8 year old reading age.

Lv's {Room 13, Girl - ¥7) altendance issues have affected LV's achievement.
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She has however progressed by one year from a 5.5 to 6.5 reading age.

CL (Room 28, Boy - ¥7) is an absolute pleasure. She gives 100% eflod and
has a posilive attitude. To progress she needs one-lo-one support. CL has
maoved from a 5 1o a 5.5 reading age.

MT {Room 28, Boy - ¥7) needs one-ic-one support and explicit leaching to
progress further. His underslanding of English is limited. He is not able to
aceess {he curriculum al present.

LT (Roorn 73, Girl - Y8) is a new learner to English and has a very basic
understanding. She will benefit greally from 1 ie 1 teaching. She was not able
to access the curriculum at all and relies on Goaogle translate o communicate,

TT {Room 73, Girl - ¥7) is a new leamer to English. TT has a very basic
understanding. She will benefit greatly from one-to-ane teaching. She is
curmently reading at a 5 year old reading age.

JU's {Rpoom 11, Girl - ¥8) confidence has improved. Her comprehension
requires further development. She remains 21 a b year old reading age.

YE [Room 78, Gird - Y7) iz a bundle of energy who needs to be reminded 1o
restrain her enthusiasm at times. She has progressed froma 910 a 10 year old
reading age.

EG (Roorn 78, Girl - Y7) is quiel and reserved, EG has moved by hall a reading
age from 8.5 to 9 years old.

JU {Room 78, Boy - Y7 is boisterous and mischisvous. JU has moved by half
a reading age from 6 to 6.5 years old.

JBY's {Room 78, Boy - Y7) attendance has been a huge influencer for JBYs
achievament 1his year. He has moved slightly from a 6 to a 6.5 year old reading
age.

VP [Room 78, Boy - Y8)is an eager and curious learner. VP tested cut of ESOL
in Term Three. He is currently reading at an 11 year old reading age.

MHN {Room 69, Boy - Y7) has a very aclive personality. He has increased his
reading age by one year from 7.5 1o 8.5.

DV (Room 59, Boy - ¥7) requires inlensive developmient of his phonics and
decoding skills. He would greatly benefit from further ane-to-one lessons. He
has moved from 3 5 1o a 5.5 year old reading age.

HK {Room 59, Boy - YB) is inlelligent. He requires guidance and some direction
to stay on task. He has progressed hugely by three and a half years reading
age from 6.5 - 10,

JP [Room 67, Boy - Y V), ever the socialiser. JP is happy lo go wilh the fiow and
somelimes this is 1o his detriment. He has remained at a 9 year old reading
age.

AN {Room 73, Boy - ¥7) 5 quiet and al times distant from his peears. AN has
maved from a 10 1o a 10.5 year ofd reading age.
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JF (Roam 22, Boy - Y7} has progressed from a 5.5 te a 7 year cld reading age.
He is quiet and determined towards his learning.

AC {Room 11, Boy - Y8} is reserved and frigndly. He has gonefroma9toa 10
year old reading aga.

AT {Room 79, Boy - Y7} lefi schoo! hallway through this term. He was able to
make some progress in his learning and move froma 9to a 10 year old reading
age.

5P {Room 79, Girl - ¥7) has moved from a 8.5 to 9 year old reading age. She
is shy and quiel wilh a love for learning.

R¥ (Room 75, Girl - YB) was a gift into our ESOL programme. Though not
eligible for funding she was able to benefil from our smaller group lessons.

SE (Room 13, Girl - Y8) came to M| at the beginning of Term Four. Her
understanding of English is very limited. She was not able 1o access {he
curricuium,

AT {Room 24, Bay - ¥7) would demonstrate achievement on par with his
schoolmates if he attended school more. He has moved from a 5.51ca 7 year
old reading age.

TN {Room 24, Boy - ¥7) is friendly and sociable, TN would benefit from mere
intensive ward and {etter sound lessons. He remains at a 5.5 year old reading
age.

KA [Roam 24, Boy - Y8) is reserved and determined. With limited English he
tas done well moving from a 8 1o 2 9.5 year old reading age.

PV (Raoom 28, Boy - ¥7) has progressed from a 8 lo 8.5 year old reading age.
He requires more concentration and focus 1o keep pushing forward with his
learning.

KD {Room 27, Girl - Y7) is quiet and reserved. KD has moved froma 5510 a
& year ald reading age.

FK (Room 27, Boy - Y7} did not move in reading age this year. He is a great
kid, but is unable to process or retain new informalion for any amount of time.

SR {Room 27, Boy - Y7) is confident and determinad. SR has progressed from
a 7.5 to B.5 year old reading age.

8A (Room 27, Boy - Y7) is the epilome of COOL. He will benefil from basic
waord work drills. He has progressed frar an 8 to an 8.5 year old reading age.
FK {Room 27, Bay - Y7) will increase his achievernent wilh some concentration
and determination. He remains at an 8 year ofd reading age.

DP (Room 27, Boy - YA) has been a pleasure 1o watch progress over the lasl
two years. He has moved from a 7 1o an & year old reading age.

KA (Room 34, Boy - ¥7) has a great attitude towards his learning. He has
moved from a 5 ta 5.5 year old reading age.

¥ G (Room 34, Girl - Y¥) has moved from a 7 to a 10 year old reading age. Her
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determination and commitment to learning is commeandable.

TH (Room 26, Girl - Y8), ever the gueen bee. TN is easily distracled and
requires somea reminders to stay on task. She remains at a 6.5 year old reading
age.

W5 (Room 28, Girl - ¥8) has a determined atiluda towards her learning. She
has increased her reading age from 8 ta 8.5 years old.

JT (Room 26, Girl - Y8) has progressed from an 8.5 to 9 year old reading age.
She has enjoyed stepping into ESQL this year,

PK {(Room 26, Girl - Y7} has developed in confidence these past two terms,
after a rocky start. She is reading at a 7 year old reading age, up from 8.5

MM {Room 26, Gif - Y7) has increased from a 8.5 1o a 7 year old reading age.
wWord work and diills will increase MMs understanding of word and senlence
struclures.

ZZ (Room 3D, Girl - Y8) has been a silent achigver but has put in efiprl 1o
complete tasks given and practice speaking out loud. Her reading age has
progressed from an 8 to a 9 reading age.

AT (Room 30, Girl - ¥7) has shown more confidence and takes the lead for
cthers in the group by padicipating in our lessons. She's still friendly and has
improved with her wriling pace but | feel like she could have an issua with her
lzarning. Reading age remains at 5.0.

FMN {Room 77, Gid - Y8} is smar, independent, focussed and gets the lasks
done in class. Athough she doesn’t like to come to class, she gets the work
done quielly and helps out the next person from time 1o time. Reading level
wenl from 8.5 1o 8.5

SU {Room 30, Girl - Y7) has come a long way in terms of wanling to be in the
room and slarting {6 speak out loud. She still has a long way to go but with
encouragement, | kKnow she will slant lo build confidence in the English
language. Reading age still remains at 5.0,

WLN [(Room 14, Boy - ¥7) is a smart and respecliul sludent who dossn’t
hesilate to ask or give things a go. He's helpful towards olhers and progressed
from 11.5 to 12.0 with his reading age and has lested out of ESOL. | wish him
the best for nexl year!

RL {Room 14, Boy - Y8) has slepped out even more this year by 1aking part in
class conversations, reading out loud more confidenlly, showing more
enthusiasm when working in groups and is respecliul. Reading age went from
G65to 70

JS (Room 32, Boy - ¥7) is humorous and likes to participate in class
discussions. He shaws his knowledge when he is excited. He's been a joy 1o
have. Reading age from 9.0 to 9.5 and I'm confident he will progress nexl year.

ET {Room 32, Girk- Y8) is a quiet achiever that padicipates in class and is also
amazing at drawing. Har comprehension skills have improved and she has
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managed to speak more in class. I'm proud of her. Her reading age has
progressed from 7.0 10 a confident 7.5.

BR {Room 32, Boy - Y8} is a pleasant student who puts eforl into learmning and
his goals. He shows initiative and confidence with enthusiasm when we have
group discussions. He starled at a 5.5 reading age and am thrilled to see him
reading at an 8.5 1o 9.5 level.

AC {Room 32, Boy - Y8) has grown in confidence and has contributed 16 the
class a lot more in this last half of the year. His reading level has gone from a
7.5tcan8.

JD (Room 32, Girl - YB) deesn’ hold back and asks questions 1hal will benefit
herunderstanding. She's grown so much this year and proud to see her reading
age has bumped up from 6.5 to a solid 7.

RR {Room 32, Girl - ¥7) is a delightful sludenl who needs 1o read regularly,
She is more sociable end confidence has grown over time. Her reading age
has progressed fram 6.5 to 7.0

MG (Room 32, Boy - Y8} has a bright smile, likes to work quietly and has
participated more. His reading ege has progressed frorm 5.0 to B.0 over the past
year and will advance as he puls effort into each task. Proud 1o also say he
sieppad up in the Samoan group and perforrmed! For a quiet student, he put in
the work and did great!

FMI (Room 3, Girl - Y7} has come a long way and has taken inilialive for her
own learning in class and also with my lessons. She asks a few more queslions
and | am happy that she responds well o me. Her reading age remains at 5.5
with a huge step towards improvement.

EFP {Room 71, Boy - ¥7) is a pleasure 1o have in the class as he is funny and
ahways keen to ask questions when he is unsure. His confidence has grown big
lime and also perfonmed in the front line for Samoan group. His reading age
has progressed froma 7o an 8.

JS (Room 71, Girl - YT} is lovely and gets the tasks done. She is vibrant and
likes to share when we do group discussions. Her personality is like a lighl
fealher. Her reading age went fram 8.5 to a solid 9.

LT {Room 71, Girl - ¥8) is quiet and gels her work done. She's shown more
interest over the last half of the year, performed in the front ling for S5amoan
group and displayed some leadership qualities which I'm proud of. Her reading
age has progressed from 7 1o 7.5,

JTH {Room 71, Boy - Y7) actively parlicipates in all aclivities and isn't afraid to
ask queslions. | have told him aboul what needs improvement and he has
slowly applied lhis. He reads at a 7.0 reading age.

MT {Room 71, Girl - ¥7) is quiet-natured but always has interesting things to
share in small groups. She's slowly built the courage to coniribute to
discussions allhough she deesn'l speak loud enough. Her reading has gone up
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from an 8 to an A.5 level.

YH (Room 71, Girl - Y7} is always cheedul and helplul towards others. She
finds some things challenging, bul gives it a go. Her reading level dipped to an
A and recenlly has progressed back to B.5.

AZA {Room &2, Boy - Y7) is quiel-nalured and pleasant to have in class. He is
slowly building his confidence to speak out loud and make his own decisions
as his class buddy speaks for hirn #l times. He needs more time to practice
reading out loud. His reading 'evel has dropped from 6.5 to 5.

ZZA (Room 30, Boy - ¥7) has {rouble reading and communicating 2l timas. |
feel like he could do wilh ane-to-ong suppor as I'm unsure whether English is
spaken at home to praclice. He cannol write and read well in English yet and
is siling at reading age 5.

20 (Room 20, Girl - Y7} has trauble focussing al limes and needs information
braken right down, Overall, when she's {ully facussed, she paricipales and gels
the work done. Her current reading age is slill at 7 with some improvement.

Al (Room 20, Gid - Y7} is quite shy bul is doing ok with reading and wriling. {
am aclively working on getting her 1o speak out loud more as she is conscious
of her lisp. Her reading age is slill at 7.5 progressing from a 7.0 earlier in the
year.

MT {Room 20, Boy - ¥8) is a character that has come a long way from a zero
in English literacy level last year. Although he still needs work, his confidence
shaws in fronl of his peers and will be buckling down 1his term as he heads (o
high school nexl year. His reading age is 5.5 progressing from a slow slarl last
year at 5.0. | wish him well.

SA (Room 15, Boy - Y7} was frequently absent in Term Two but is abways
pleasant when he comes o ESOL. He needs to put in the wark 1o get his literacy
levels up. Reading age has dropped from 6to 5.5

MM {Room 15, Girl - Y7) has shown progress since Term One and attendance
has also picked up. Her reading level is sitting at 7.0 as there is no consistency
shiown in the fast half of iha year.

ET {Room 15, Boy - Y7} uses his initiative to parlicipate and try out new tasks.
He is a delight 1o have in class. Reading and comprehension progressed fram
10.5 1o 11. His consistency and eageress o progress will gel him Far next
year.

KA (Room 15, Boy - Y7) has come a long way fram little to no knowledge of
English. His progress is slowly 1aking off and tiny signs of confidence are
starling to show_ His reading is gelling better although he poinls wilh hig finger
a ot (understandable as English is still foreign). Comprehension will improve
ance he gets more familiar with bigger words. His reading age is 6.5 and
reading is mare fluenl compared to the star of the year.
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MV {Room 15, Boy - Y8} is cne of the mast outspoken in class and fikes 1o
show what he knows. He has improved over lhe year and look on more
responsibiiities argund the school which was exciling to gee. Ha was lhe [2ad
drummer for Samoan group and afso performed well His reading age
progressed from 80 fto 85 and aleo does lhe reading program with Ms
Edwards.

TCL (Room 75, Girl - Y7 has shown sfow progress in class and slowly
paripated in most activities. She understands a bil of English and uses
Google Translate for some communication. She is currently silling at 5.0
reading age and | am looking forward 10 her improvemant over the naxi term.
We're nat there yel but | believe she will show more results nexl year.

Bl {Room 75, Boy - ¥7) is a smart student who paricipates and ties his best
to complete tasks. He's culgoing and encourages olhers. His reading age slid
back 1o 8 after progressing to 8.5.

W8 (Room 75, Girl - Y7} is lovely and polite, likes to help out others but also
focusses on her work. She is sociable and is tracking well with literacy skills.
She has tested out of our programme as she has shown big progress and
reading age is at a comforable 10.5 afler going up fo 11,

RK {Room 4, Boy - Y7) likes to come to class and gels a bit shy when trying
new things or answering queslions in front of peers. He iz pleasant to have and
recantly started to communicate ideas to contribute and has a sense of humour
wilh a big smile. His reading age went from 7 to 7.5.

FR (Room 4, Boy - ¥7) is smarl and likes to talk about the tasks and in general.
His reading age weant from 8 to 8.5, He also likes to show whal he can do with
tasks given.

JP (Room 12, Girl - Y8) is outspoken and likes to work. She shows her progress
every week and enjoys the inleraction belween her peers that builds her
confidence. Her reading age is 7.5 climbing to a confident B.

AKPL (Room 3, Boy - ¥8) seems happy to be in class but haan't made much
progress. He tries to communicate in English which is really basic and short.
He responds to Learning Village and doing group activities with his ethnic
group. Reading age is still sitting at 5.

BRT {Room 3, Girl - Y7} is non-verbal but understands some English. She
doesn't like to try speaking in English but can do some work. We use Geogle
Translale to communicale in detail sometimes but recently slarted to say a few
English wards. She shows initiative and improvemant with her reading level
currentiy at 5.5,

JP {Room 9, Girl - ¥7) still reads at 6.0 and continues to require 2 lot of supparl.
She's not vocal so ice breakers are good for sludents like her to get some
participation.
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AL (Room 9, Boy - Y7) is talkative and always parlicipates in class activities.
He likes to share and show his progress with the class as well as encourage
his buddies. His reading age progressead from 9.5 to 11 and shows signs that
he'll progress higher nexd year. He doesn't need ESOL.

EM (Room 9, Girl - Y8) is a quiel achiever who has shown a lot of improvement
aver the term. She's smart and respectful and is slowly coming oul of her shell
tc speak. Her reading age weni from 9 to a solid 10.

AD (Room 8, Girl - Y7) is slill in lhe foundation stage and will eontinue in our
101’s. She doesn’l fully undersland questions so breaking down messages in
lifite chunks seems to work, She is slill reading al age 5. She might need mare
suppart a5 she strugales wilh word recognilion.

AT {(Room 15, Boy - ¥7) is smart and talkative with rmyself and olhers. His
progress has shown over the lerm and he applies advice when given. His
reading age went from 8.5 to a solid 10. I'm proud of his progeess this year.

EYY (Room 19, Bay - Y7) brings enlhusiasm and gives elort in class. He's
progressed from a 6.5 10 7.5, shows signs of levelling up and is a joy to have in
class.

S (Room 15, Gir - Y8) is polite and vibrant and also knows expectations for
nerself to progress before going to high school. She is good wilh fiteracy and
has shown improvement with comprehension. Her reading age progressed
from 10.5 1o 11 and tested oul.

Student Voice

Allie

OF (Room 78, Boy - Y8)
*f feef excited o come info Room 10 with Miss Allie. [ enjoy the questions and
freally fike the queslions at the door hecause they are fun and exeiting.”

MM {Room &2, Boy - ¥7)
“In Room 10, | feel good and happy. | enfoy coming because it is fun there. Miss
Affie makes me warnt fo be here all the Hime.”

HK (Room 69, Boy - Y8)

" want lo have more free time in class. ke itin Room 10 becauses its fun and
we made pizza. | ke doing the gqueslions at the door before we lzave.”

CL {Room 28, Girl - ¥7)

"l feel s0 good and happy when [ come la see Miss Whaea Allie. 5he is good
and she leacfies me. [learn listening and reading here, bit F nesd help on my
speling more.”

JU (Room 78, Boy - Y8)
‘t fike daing the question at the door before we leave. Miss Afiie is fun and Jolfy.
[ feel bifsshid when [ go o Reom 107

FY (Room 78, Boy - Y7)
S Fmogoing fo be honest, | would say Room 10 is amazing. | enjoyed ihe
fistening fesson we did today.”
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EG (Room 78, Girl - Y7)

* would like to read more in the fibrary during our lessons. | enjoy tearning bal
! need help with the big words more, it's fun when | come into Room 10 Miss
Affie talks a Iof, fike mie at home.”

VP (Room 78, Boy - Y8)

“Miss Affie loves us, she's kind and so fun. My favourile fesson was cooking.
but | would fike to play more learning games too. [ like the question at the door
because Miss Alfie is testing oul feaming.”

¥E (Room 78, Girl - Y¥)

1 enjoyed making Pizza and cupcakes Hiis year. We always do fun activities
here. Miss Allie is kind and always passionate about our fearning. The lessons
afwways surprise me."

LL (Room 73, Girl - Y8)
‘i Room 1t we are wiiling and talking. il is good here and it is fun. | heed more
help with leaming english.”

TL {Room 73, Girl - ¥7)
" is fun with games in Room 10 { enjay coming here fo Room 10, My feacher
is good.”

MT {Room 28, Boy - Y7)
"I don't enjoy reading books and | need hefp with my fearning. | ask Miss Whaea
Afli for help with everything and cooking.”

JMR {Room 25, Boy - Y8)
“Miss i5 a lovely person and helps us. | ke conting fo Roon 10 because | get
fa fearn English and cook food. My favourite lessons are bus stop and cooking.”

PG (Room 25, Boy - Y¥)

fcook, play and read. { wan! to do more cooking though. | need mare help with
my spelling. f enjoy i here and Hove ff here in Room 10, Everyday Miss Aftie is
smifing.”

J& {Room 25, Boy - Y1)

‘f erjay coming to Room 10 { love it | need lo do more reading but | want to
do more playing games. [ ke coming to Room 10"

AT {Room 30, Girl - ¥7)
1 feel happy about coming to feam in Room 21. 1 need hefp with math. |
remember fearning how 16 cook. Her name is Miss Rina. ! is fun to go to Room
21. 1 want to see new fares in our groups. My favourite lesson was playing
games’

5L {Room 30, Gid - ¥7)
I feel sad no more ESOL. | fike Miss Rina. | ike playing cards.'
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SA [Room 15, Boy - Y7)

“ feel happy abtout coming o fearn in Room 21 f need help wilh reading. |
remember learning how fo cook and wriling. I is fun to go to Room 21. My
favourile lesson was playing games. We are friends.”

ET (Room 32, Girl - YB)

I fee! happy when | come to Room 21. | need help with speaking in front of my
class more. | remember fearmintg the disappearing texd and pfaying memory
after. Miss Rina is fun and | fike that she is coof and nice. She doesn't grow! at
me, onfy the boys when lhay fafk all the time. It 15 nice in Room 21, | fike
everything there. I like feaving with questions al the door.”

2R (Reom 32, Boy - Y8)

°f ke going to Miss Rina because i's fun and not foud, | need felg with my
writing. I feamed how fo cook and wiile fiedaps of senfences. Miss Rina s fun
and tatks to aff of us. 'm going to MH noxd vear. We did a scavenger funt and
it was fun. Hike the queslions at the door because it 1s maths,”

J3 {Room 32, Boy - Y7}

*f faef ke 2 happy person when | go lo Miss Rina's room. We have fun learming
and it is not too foud, [ need help with spefling and writing, We learned how (o
make serdences with our brainstorm and learmed how to play memory in 5
miimtes. Miss Rina is coof and likes lo bake chocolate cake. Can we have more
nesw peoMe in our cfass. | ke having questions al the door because we see
who knows the answers first”

AT (Room 19, Boy - Y1)

“t always run fo Room 21 once the bell goes because it's fun and exciting. Miss
Rina makes leaming fun and is fhe best teacher ever! She is Rind and | enjoy
goietg ta ESGL because [ am able 1o focus beller | have learnt a fof, fike hiow
o write beller senlences and tips on haw to read mare Ruenlly. The queshions
al the door are funt”

EVY (Room 18, Boy - Y7)

‘ feef happy and ke gong to Room 21, We alf have fur and sometimes it's
hard work. I like finishing my work firgt so | can ask for free ime, We were
fearning how fo cock pizza on a budget. would ke (o see some more activilies
nexi year like this year. [ have more confidence speaking because Miss Rina
afways says lo practice. I like having questions al the door,”

JP (Room 9, Girl - ¥7)
I fike the cooking fesson and going ta Room 21. Miss Rina afhvays talks | can
bramsiomm. [ enjoy going fo her room.”

MK {Room 9, Gir - Y8)

"t always feel happy witen | come o Room 271, Miss Rina has fun Méings for us
to fearn. | have impraved on my reading and wriling and she always says [ wilf
go far in colfege if | know how to do them. Cocking and doing sylfables were
fun. Miss Rina fikes to back chocolate cekes and has a big family because of
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her piclures on the wall. hwould want to stay in ESOL if 1 wasn't qoing to college.
The questions al the door are fun!™

MV (Room 15, Boy - Y8}

I sometimes have fun i Miss Rina's class. | somelimes need hefp wilh
speaking in front of othars. We did cooking and we did a quiz aboul coanlries
from the wall. She fkes lo have fun and she afivays tells ma lo look after the
drums for Samoan group. The questions 2l the door are ok.”

NN {Room 15, Girl - Y7)
°f fka Miss Rina’s roomn. We hava fun and do fols of writing. 1 nead help wilh
spalling. Cooking and aaking was cool. Miss Rina is nice. Hike playing games.”

FR {Room 4, Boy - ¥7)

Titke going fo ESOL because we have fun. | need help with writing somelimes.
We cook and learn haw to write in our books. Miss Rina is cool and kind and
we afways have pens. | fike our class because it's nof foud. | want to stay In
ESOL when I come back next year. Games and seeing other peopfe is what |
warnt to see next year, Questions at the door is funny. { always knaw fhe
ansiver.”

BL {Room 4, Giri - Y7)

" like our class. | need help with writing. | iked cooking becatse | made yummy
food Miss Rina is loud and fikes music. | have fun sometimes. We play games
and write afot”

VS (Room 75, Girl - Y7}

“f ke going to ESOL wilh Miss Rina because we do furt things. 1 ke it when
we play games sfler we finish our work. We played memory and sitent ball a
few imes. ! need help with wriling more. !Hiked H when we coaked and ale our
baking. Miss Rina is Kowhai alt the way and kind. [ gel nervous when we do
gueshions al the door but { get it ight somaltimas.”

Recommendations for 2025

s Kura Reo

¢ More 1 on 1 opporlunities for 0 - 4 ELLP

Students need help with basic word work

Students need help understanding basic sentence structure

Students need help wilh letter sounds

Some more work around simple everyday things like days of the week and
months of the year, especially with our Filipine Kids
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- More opportunities to talk out loud for all ESOL kids
- Tuakana/Teina ESOL kids and encousage interaction with their peers and
teachers at every opportunity

Literacy
o Continuve using iDeal as the structured literacy intervention through the use of its
speliing and reeding programme
o Ensure that all students involved in iDeal are tested at the start of the year and end
of the year to lrack prograss
2 Engage in PD releted to the new curriculum, and in particuler structured literacy

Numeracy
o Continue to use hard matenals and games o support low level leamers o improve
number knowledge e.g. Numicon and SPRING into Meth kits
o Engaga in PD related to the new curmcutum and in panticular Oxford resources
o Track data of students in intervention groups to report back e.g. Basic Facts

Qulside agencies
¢ Continue to maintein strong reletionships with cutside agencies whom support our low
level learners

Medication
a Develop a mare robust system of tracking medication and administering it efficiently

Learning Assistants
o Gonlinue to upskill the LAs in curnculum te provide support for the sludents
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CURRICULUM OBJECTIVES 2024

COOKING

OBJECTIVES

AMNALYSIS

To Continue managing and utilising modern
lechnology in the new room to provide equilable
access and qualily learming experiences far our
chitdren.

This has been achieved welt, The coaking leacher
and LA make the technology easily accessible to
studenls lo increase learning. A new iPad has bean
purchased which has enhanced program delivery.
The Apple TVs are sometimes problemalic (j.e.
unzable o cast and need raselling by Da Vi)

To develop systems, routines, organisation and
struclure in the new food teaching space.

This has been fine-luned as the year has gone on,
Both the teacher and LA have been very strict with
routines. Some 1lhings changed, such as the
lzcalion of the microwaves, for logistics.

To utilise the school gardens and any leftover,
usable food from the lunches as valuable resources
for our Foods room. This approach minimises
waste and allows us to make lthe most of the
available resources. Consistent use o©of these
resources will promaote the usefulness of such a
resource (the gardens) in our school and
encourage ils successful management, as well as
encourage sludents to emulate this resource {i.e. &
garden) at home.

This has happened somewhat haphazardly as the
ciassroom is distant from some of the gardens. This
means eilher sending studenls on lheir own or in
pairs to the garden or lhe teacher will collect it
bafore leszons.

The gardens are being re-planted by our
enviranmenial leacher who will be working more
clasely wilh the cooking leacher,

There have been discussions between the teacher
and Envimnmental teachar about idezl foods to be
planted ale.

To develop a culture where students are able 1o 1alk
about and use lhe skills and knowledge they laarn
in Cooking everywhere else,

This has continued to be a focus this year. Some
students really enjoy using correct terminclogy.
Some struggle.

Always great to hear from families that studenls are
stepping vp at home,

To put recipes andfor useful Information on ihe
school website, and some videos.

This is slill on the “to do” list, The teacher will liaise
with the DP of e-learning for ideas of the basl way
to do this.

To be involved in providing an  after-sehool
programme within the Cocking Room.

This has happened during; Paeriod Six, Vibe, Master
Chef and part of some Marae stays.

To continue developing Lhe ‘cafe’ concept with the
supporl of lhe Cooking Teacher, Passion Pod
Leader and selecled students.

This has been hugely successful. Studenis have
worked at break times, usually on a roster, and
have tried afl the different aspects of the cafe.

All food has been sold for $1. The foed has often
been mare popular lhan Lhe hol chocolates.
Although not designed to make a profit, lhare has
been a small profit,

There have bean groups of stafl and sludents using
the cafe for mesatings and there is scope far this to
increase,




CULTURAL ENRICHMENT

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

For all teachers to facilitate or be involved in a
Cullural Enrchmenl Group. They are engaged
wilh this group of kids for the year, ensuring each
group has an engaging plan. The Period b
materal will involve a yearlong action plan of
what will happen also.

All teachers have bean aclively involved in facililating
of supporing a Cultural Enrichment Group. Each
group has a welldhcught-out, engaging plan that
spans lhe enlire year, reflecling the commilment of
leachers to  ensure meaningful  and  strong
experdences for students. This continuity in
engagement has resulted in well-structured and
sludent-cenired programmes.

Develop a diversa, engaging and inclusive
programma, that meets the needs of all children
who choose their Cultural Enrichment Group
equally, mainlaining high slandards lhat are
measured and cbiainable.

We have successfully developed a diverse and
inclusive Cultural Enrichment Programme that meets
the needs of all students, regardless of their cultural
background or interests. By maintaining high
standards that are measurable and obtainable, we
have ensured ihat each student who chooses a
Cullural Enrichment Group has equal access to
opportunities for growlh and success. This is mosl
notable with the addition of a Fijian group this year.

To maintain the upkeep of costumesfuniforms and
musical instruments for the performing groups. If
new ilams are boughlacquired then Lhey are
accessioned into the cultural shed,

The upkeep of costumes and uniforms for ihe
performing groups has been diligently maintained.
MNew items have bean properly accessioned inte the
cultural shed, ensuring thal our resources are
well-organised and acceassible.

Al perdorming groups must fulfil  the Ml
PER.FO.RM acronym and this is referred to
regularly.

All groups conlinus to regulardy reference and fuifil
the Ml P.E.R.F.C.R.M. acronym, which has become a
guiding principle for our ars and cultural
performances. This is often referred to in assemblies
andfor in class {where it is displayed throughout the
school).

Conlinue to develop and provide more
opportunities for students to perform over ang
above Enn Park (not only within the community).
Perormances oulside of school are happening at
primary schools, feslivals and other relevant
gvents.

We have conlinued lo provide more perflormance
opportunities for students beyond Erin Park. Qur
perdorming groups have showcased their talents not
only in local communily spaces but also at pnimary
schools and Totara Hospice. It would be good ta now
pariner with lhe High Schools in this domain.

To implement a new Cullural Enrichment planning
madel to develap student interest and exposure ta
inclusion and success that contains depth and
engagement.

Planning has heen done and followed up wilh. Also
having all sludents meet in the hall at lhe beginning
of Cullural Enrichment has ensured school wide
consistency of direction and ensured all sludenis get
o where ihey need 1o go.




DIGI COMP

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Create, edit and use algonthms, coding languages
and a range of resources to achieve specific tasks.

It has definitely been beneficial lo focus on using 2
variely of software and enccuraging students to
explore diferent programming languages. It's been
great to see students engaging wilh more than just
block-based manipulation, as they're now taking an
interest in coding with typed commands as well,

Use and express subjecl-specific vocabulary
surrounding the usage of digital tools and literacy.

Reflections at the end of each term for avery class
have shown a ciear ingrease in students’ knowledge
and confidence, paricularly regarding wvocabulary
terms and their use in specific contexls. Using
practice sels {0 review content has  been
well-received and has proven very useful for my own
teaching praclice.

Show an underslanding of how the design and use
of digital systems can affecl humans in both local
and glghal ways.

This prograss is especially evident when we discuss
the real-world applications of syslems. When links
are made Wy real-life situations, it becomes clearer ta
students why understanding how systems can affect
the world is so important. For example, the recent
cyber update lhat crashed systems globally, and
avenls like Tonga's experience, help students see
the relevancs.

Complete independent tasks that show personal
choicas in design elements, purpose andg
inputsfoutputs,

The use of task sheets and Soogle Classroom,
along wilh olher sofiware platforms, has been bath
practical and posilive. Students are able o access
and complete work at home if lhey wish, and lhay
have shown a lot of enthusiasm for independent
work. This is encouraging, as their progress reflects
& deeper underslanding, and they're taking
awnership of their tearning while embracing new
challenges.




DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE

QBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Ensure new stafl induction includes helpful
information on Cigital Infrastructure.

The Ospuly Principal who oversees Digital
Infrastructure went over the systems and processes at
Induclion with new staff as well as a remindar for Lhe
whole staN during Staff Only Week. These reminders
inceded:

- Keeping devices tidy and Iocked afer

= Roulines and expectations with students

How to hold/camry devices

- What to do if there is an issue

- How to prevent issues from happening
Information slides were also shared with stall, as a
reference for the beginning of the year routines but
also available to use throughout the year.
This is a constant reminder for all teachers when using
devices in their classmmoms. Some teachers require
mare follow up than olhers.

Maonitgr and maintain the use of Chromebooks
and Fujitsu laptops in classrooms by ensuring this
is raported on in an angaing way.

The use of the ICT Helpdesk, supports teachers who
have reporled ongoing ssues with their devices

Our IT technician and leadership keep on lop of what's
being damaged, what issues seem to be recccuring
angd in what rooms they are occurring, We then deal
wilh these accordingly and in a tlimaly manner. |
ensure to keep everyone in lhe [oop as well, 50 they
know who may need additional supporl in thair
whanaufteam.

Majority of lhe staff are really good at looking after
their devices and both the IT technician and leadership
do randomy checks whenever we are in and out of
classrooms.

Some devices are performing past their use by date
and are oflen coming up with the same issues. Thisis
gomething we will look into in 2025,

Ensure the upkeep and maintenance of digital
assets/hardware within our school are aceounled
for in an ongoing way e.9. equipment repairs
andfor device failures

- lpads

- TW's and Projectors

- SBound systems

- Printers

- Cameras/Speakers

- WiliiNetwark

- Telephones

Hargware

Our IT Techrnician completes a stocklake of devices
twice a year to ensure they are maintained and kept in
good condition, Whanau Leaders also check this at
the end of the Term, as parl of their classmoom pack
ups.

The Helpdesk has been split info Whanau groups
again this year so Whanau Leaders can easily see
wha in their whanau is needing supporl.

Thera have bean a coupla of conneclion issues where
teachers have found it difficult to keep their laptops
casling ta their screens for long periods of time. Qur IT
Technician it aware of lhis and is working on making
this more effortiess.

Ipads: These are still in circulation and currenily live
wilh the Science teachers, pardiculardy for recording
their leaming process. These will canlinue to be used
until they die.

Wifi and network: Issues with connectivity are still




apparent every now and then bul anly in cerlain places
of the school and only when everyons is on a device
i.e filling in 3 survey at the same time.

Printars: Have continued to have their ups and downs
this year and Toshiba have been really responsive in
lixing these for us. As a whole, we are very lucky to
have the printers we currently have as many schools
de not have this.

Cameras!Speakers: Cameras and speakers are
working well and haven't caused any issues this year,
Cameras parlicularly coms in handy when we need to
check on something and the IT Manager is always
very diliganl when asked to check cur foolage. We are
wanting to instal a new speaker on the GOAT to
ansure tha kids can hear the bell when they are all
under there playing.

Scund Systems: The same speaker in the Hall we
had issues with last year, has been temperamenlal
this year and we have had someone come in to look at
them. Speakers are now & years old. These speakers
don't seem to be able to handle our expeclations of
them or lhe purpose in which we use them.

Ensure the upkeep and maintenance of ICT
consumakbles wilhin cur schad! are accounted for
in an ongoeing way and checked yearly:

- Test and Tag

- Cables and Fuses

- Carlridges and Toners

- Repairs and maintenance

Term Three is whan our IT Technician tesls and lags
all our appliances in our school A huge job as we
have over 1,400 devices, and that's only laptops,
computers and Tvs. This doesnt inglude the
machines and appliances {cameras, phones, bell and
printers} we have also.

Staff have hean better at lpoking after such resources,
However, there have been a few replacements of
ilems such as HDMI cables and locks on laptop
cabinet doors.

Hapara, Google, Microsoft Licences and Software
are kept up to date for staff and sludents.

Qur IT Technician ensures our lisences are kept up to
date each year,

In 2023, we had 1024 current licences which covered
all our staff and sludents. This year, with a growing roll
of 240+ students, wa have had to vpgrade the amount
of licences o caler o this,

We continue to communicate with Microscfl 1¢ install a
dual Google and Microsofl package which helps with
all devices to distribute apps etc and control our digital
anvirgnment.

Hapara is a third-pady software, which is no longer
suppored by Google. This means we must deploy lhe
software lo match our systems.

It would be goed to furdher our skills in Hapara in the
future, to zee what else this software has on offer and
how it can support student learning in classes.




DISCOVERY PROGRAMMLES

OBJECTIVES

AMNALYSIS

Ensure Oplions retains its rigour as an extension
of the curfeulum. STEAM-based as well as GaT
Options.

Many opporiunities for students to explore new and
demonstrate cument talents in oplions such as: GaT
Math, An Oesign, \Whakorero, Poi Making etc.
However, some areas have ventured away o
specific STEAM slructure where we saw a nead

All teacher choices for the options they will offer are
reviewed by the leadership lesam. ensuring that
high-quality options lessons are available 1o
students. This process helps maintain a standard of
excellence and aligns wilh the owverall goals and
objectives.

use a shared planning
fo  ensure high quality,

Teachers
template’expectation
thoughtful pfanning.

All planning is linked into a shared document for
review and feedback, addressing any necessary
adjustments. Soma teachers have received light
supporl  concesning lheir  planning  and
implementation, but this has been targeted to very
specific areas.

morease the emphasis on the “create™ "share” for
each Oplion. Develop and provide more
epperunities for students to perform and share
what they have learnlfpractised in Oplions.

Thera's room for improvament in Lhis aspect. While
work is typically showcased in classrooms, we can
explore additional avenues for sharng work and
performances, such as  ulilising platforms  like
Facebook, [nstagram, or organising a dedicated
"Celebralion of Learning” event.

Form teachers must dedicate lime to ensuring their
kids choose the Option lhal is right far them. The
use of an expfanatory slideshow that helps
sludenls choose their Option could help teachers
do this.

We have a well-designed selection process in place.
Students are initially presented with various aclivity
opticns, from which thay choose their lop four
preferences. Their Form Teacher compifes and adds
these choices lo a document, and students are Lhen
assigned lo aclivities accordingly.




E - LEARNING

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Ensure stafl induction includes helpful infarmatian
about E-Learning and how this can be applied in
classrooms, acress the curriculum.

This was dons al the beginning of the year during
Staff Only Week where we upskilled everyone as a
whaole cohort on their use of the SAMR model. Very
few teachers Knew about the SAMR model so it
was good to get sveryone to think more critically
about ihe way they use their devices,

Consider incorporaling this irlo 1he 2025 Stafl
Induction i continue 1o enhance integration and
consistency across The school,

Ensure devices in class are being used effectively
using the SAMR model and nol just as a substitute
for pen and paper.

This year | have ensured we ara checking this in
our capacily as Whanau Leaders and as Passion
Pod Leaders as we are in and out of classrooms.

There has bean a significant redireclion from using
devices as a subslitute and inslead using devices
to enhance student learning. This is still a work in
progress and will need to continue throughout 2025
to move through each phase of the SAMR modsl,

Provide Professional Developmenl opportunities for
staff to supporl their use of devices in the
classroom by staff expers and DP: el ]

Providing PD on classroom device use has been a
bit of a challenge lhis year, however solutions have
bean put in place to ensure this can be dons
efectively across the year in 2025, This year, DP;
ell, created shorl, sharp videos for stal to use no
matter their subject area. Discussions were alsc
had by Passion Pod leaders about what their team
dees really well and what they needed supporl with,
A padleliQR code was also created as an
e-Learning Helpdesk for stal to add their queries lo
if they needed supporl. This wasn’t & huge success
and | have come 1o the conclusion that people dan't
know whal they don'l know. A more eflective way of
providing this supporl would be lhrough RCGs, at
lhe beginning of slaff meetings, sharing videos for
reference and talking 1o people about their
g-Learning goals/desires.




ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION

OBJECTIVES

AMNALYSIS

To implerment an engaging and rich programme to
better equip our studenls with the knowledgs, skills
and mativation to tackle environmental issues.

The environment we are constantly improving
supparts robust knowledge and skill-building for our
students and gives them a sense of ownership over
what they are lzaming and what they can contribute
to their surrcundings. Through hands-on projects,
students are not only laarning aboul enviranmental
responsibility but also seeing firsthand how their
eflorts can make a diference. They are
sncouraged to lake pride in the positive impacl lhey
create, fostering a deep commilment to sustainable
praclices that they can camy into the future,

To engage in problem-solving, and take action to
improve gulcomes for the natural environment,

There's a lot of problem-solving associated wilh the
maintenance of cur waste system, ensuring that
evaryone understands and follows the correct ways
ta sort and dispose of waste effactively.

Sludents arg taught to diflerenliate  between
composlable,  recyclable, and non-regyclable
materials, giving lhem crilical skills 1hat go beyond
the classreom. Similady, cadring for our animals
requires thoughtful planning and consideration.
Kesaping animals, like ensuring the ducks and
roosters don’t mix wilh lhe pigs’ food {and vice
versa), teaches students responsibilty and the
importance of each animal's unigue dietary and
environmental needs, crealing a suslainable,
student-led ecosystem.

To increase the biodiversity (plants, fungi, birds,
reptiles  and  inverebrates) in the school
environment.

Wilh the planting of our nalive gardens and the
intrcduction of new herbs and vegetables,
alongside our composting system and the mulching
of all garden spaces, we've seen increased
biodiversity. The garden’s soil quality has improved,
allracling a qgreater vanety of plants and
inverlebrates. This rich ecasystem oflers students
an invaluable opporlunity o observe plant and
insect life cycles firsthand, helping them understand
the inlercannaecladness of all living things and the
value of nurturing biodiversily.

Liilise and manage the new Qutdoar Classroom far
classes and leacher use if required.

Mature Club now has an exciting and shellsred
place to meet, providing studenls with a
comfortable, cutdoor learning space that fuels their
curiosity. Although at times it's shll nol quite big
enough - with about 40 students being lhe
comfartable maximum - it's a fantastic spat for
fostering community and teamwark,

During Malure Club, our numbers often exceed this
limit, bul the enthusiasm remains slrong! For a
standard class size, however, it's ideal, offering a
unique environment that inspires learning and
stewardship. Managing this outdoor classroom and




ensuring it meels students’ needs is an ongoing
commitmenl.

Leam to build soil and maintain organic recycling
systems conserving natural resources and divering
food wasle from the landhl|.

Qur Zere Carbon wooden composl boxes and
Hungry Bins play a key role in our sustainabifity
efforls. The Hungry Bins are awailing lhe amival of
womm farms, which we will use 1o engage sight
classes in, lurning organic waste inta nutrient-rich
soil.

Our compost boxes are thriving, flled wilh animal
waste, food scraps, and paper wasle, creating
premium soil that's perfect for growing heallhy
plants. The quality of this composted soil means
there's no need to purchase soil or fertiliser
anymare - saving resources and demoenstraling the
full cycle of sustainability,

To empower students as kaitiaki to drive and lead
enviraonmental projects in the school environment,

I'm incredibly proud of our Eco Council and 1he
enthusiasm Lhe Year ¥s show 1o step into
leadership roles thal promole envimonmental
awareness and action.

Their passion and dedication have helped make
our sustainability initialives successful, crealing a
culture  of responsibility and respect for the
environmeant.

These young leaders are learning essential skills in
teamwork, problem-salving, and  community
engagement, paving the way for a more
sustainable future.




E4S

OBJECTIVES

AMALYSLS

Develop and maintain a programme that accurately
supparts the students learning and understanding
of suslainability from a personal (wellbeing),
whanau, cultural, societal and ecological
perspective (focal to global) Emphasis 1o be pul on
the Eco Council and Eco Ambassadors getting
moare involved in schoolwide inilialives,

Our Environmental Teacher is a reflective and
preactive practitioner, Al learning acliviies students
are involved in are designed argund empowering
their abilities and knowledge to be efeclive
Eco-conscious people,

Responsitilities within our program are incredibly
diverse, offering numercus opporunities for
studanis 1o lake on varipus roles. These roles
encempass lasks like animal feading and care,
tending to the garden by both maintaining and
creating new areas, administrative duties such as
designing data collection sheets and collecting
data, servicing cur rat traplineg, nurturing seeadlings,
cleaning, organising equipment, and even
contributing to educational displays and designing
informalive signs, among many other lasks.

The Eco Council is increasingly involved in wider
school life ie., supporting the fench crew and all
classes to produce less waste, policing Lhe bins
and supporling students 10 use the correct bin and
mentoring lhe next, promising oroup of Eco
Councilors,

Refing the programme of withdrawing sludents
from Sustainablle Enterprise o parlicipate and be
involved in the maintaining of the school's
sustainable leaming spaces with the Environmental
Educatign teacher.

Sludenls are taken out of class in small groups of
approx 5-10 {depending on lhe work theyre daing).
These sludents recsive the same information
presented  in the Sustainable Enterprise class
through working closely wilh the Environmental
Education teacher on Eco projects around the
school. Every student has the chance to engags in
outdoor learning experiences at least a couple of
times each tarm. Additionally, for those who seek to
take on leadership roles, opporunities are available
to enhance their skills and guide olher sludenls in
this ouldoor lzaming joumey,

Provide aulhentic learming opparunilies for a wider
range of students arcund sustainabilily by
including practical opporfunilies to interact wilh
genuine experiences.

Practical Opportunities provided have ranged lrom,
creating a native plant garden, establishing and
maintaining a rat trap line, participating in the South
Auckland Moth Plant Cornpetition, field trips 1o
Tiritiri Matangi sland, Puhinui Reserve {Adopt a
Fark Programme run by Auckland Councif),
Manurewa Community Recycling Centre {Run by
Beauwtificatton  Trust), in-schoa! waste audils,,
raising chickens from eggs. providing enrichment
for our animals, caring for our animals, maintaining
gardens for wvegetables, flowers, pruning and
feeding our fruit trees, designing posters, coastal
monitoring al a local beach and wvisiting the
Auckland Botanical Gardens to learn about




weaving and tikanga surround harakeke.

Develop students' understanding of their impact on
the world {positive, negalive or neulral), and how o
sustain their personal wellbeing and creale a more
sustainable culture in their everyday lives,

This is inlerwoven into everylhing | do. Involving
students in the Mature Club is the most efiective
way to achieve these goals. Personal well-being
being linked to Mature is possible because the
students are immersed in a range of
environmenlal contexts to problem solve and
enjoy. I've chserved many students come oul of
their shells and find their confidence and
enjoyment in  leaming because of their
involvement in Mature Clut,




FRIDAY FRENZY

QOBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

LANGUAGES

In 2023 the focus on Te Ren Maorn through
different contexts e School Haka/
Greetings/Tikanga, For 2024, there will be greater
emphasis on planning for language week build up
to term duning whanau planning time. This will
allow teachers to be beler prepared for the
larnguage weeks belore they happen.

Language weeks have been incorporaled into Form
Time ptanning right from the outset rather than
getting to a language week and thinking about what
we do. This has bean a much better way of making
sure that the language works are celebrated and the
content taught ta the students is well thought out and
orqanised.

FOUNDATION BASICS

Support Form Teachers in identifying students’
gaps in basic competencies and then provide a
supporl programme thal meets thase neads across
several weeks and curriculum areas. For 2023,
there was a focus an basic puncteation. For 2024,
there neads to be a focus on gslling sludenls 1o
adhere to the basics of punctuation, bul also
differentiation for sludents who are ready to be
shown how 1o use more sophislicated forms of
punciuation,

Meant 1o be a focus on basic punctuation, however,
as stated elsewhere PAT data showed that our
students have many vocabulary gaps so therefore
the focus was shifted to building student vocabulary
as lhis is usually lhe reason why sludents disengage
from a lesscn. Foundation Basics should be about
more than just punctualion and a focus on surtace
features for writing.

CAREERS (2024)

To supporl students in engaging in careers
education, through meaningful, praclical activities
to provide an inilial underslanding of career
pathways based on education choices. This is an
area where locking at how the Broadening
Honzons model is used to supporl planning in form
lime subjects would be a posilive slep. Greater
integration of the Broadening Horizons model
could allow for more flexibility within plans to foster
sludent engagement and interest,

For toth term three and four the broadening
Horizon's model was incorporated across the entire
form lima planning template. The inquiry question
was used to structure the planning and reflective
weeks at the end of the term were planned in where
sludenls could ook al their work using the final
phase of the broadening Hortzons model. this is a
much betler way of using the model because you're
aclually using it when you starl planning rather than
relying an the siudents to be able to navigate their
way through il

GEQOGRAPHY {2024}

Students will learn about different  places,
conlinents and cguniries as well as the oceans,
rivars, desers or mountaing on our planet. Expand
students’ knowledge of the world and ils history as
well as develop sludent skills with reading a variety
of texis in lhis subject area, e.g. map reading,
ahility to interpral a keyllegend, understanding of
scale, efc. Again, this is an area where the
Hroadening Horizons model and its usage could
olay a grealer role in how the units are planned.

For Geography in 2024 there was a focus on looking
at the difference betwean continenls and counlres.
Specifically, we were looking at the fact Lhat
continents are naturally formed where countries are
made by political decisions caried oul by human
beings. Thera was a focus on looking at countries
that have non-natural borders e.q., nations in Africa
that have straight borders and have heen decided by
colanial powers.




GIFTED AND TALENTED

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

The GnT feam will ensure 1hat opporlunities are
made available to students acrass all curnculum
and extra curicular areas. Maintaining a high leve!
of eflicacy around accelerated learning and
perdormance.

Sludents have the opporlunity to trial for and
paricipate in a wide array of school-wide activilies
across varnous cumcalum areas, including bands,
arl, sports, dance, and cullural graups. Additicnally,
events like "Rewa’'s Go! Talent” allow studenls to
showcase their unique abililies. Many of these
aclivitias oeeur during Period 8 and are facilitated
by dedicated leachers with sxperlise in 1lhsir
respeclive  fields.  Breakout Buzz was also
facilitated this year by various Cepuly Principals;
each choosing an area of interest and selecting
students {0 provide meaningful cpporlunities for
them to extend their skills and knowledge.

Ensure leachers have input and value the systems
we have in place to identify GnT students who
demanstrate GnT through indicators based on
evidence.

This year, a self-review of the Gifted and Talented
program is underway. which will include a survey
for teachers to gather their insighls and feedback
about supporl they may need for this.

Curranlly differentiation in lessons and work for
individua! sludents and groups can be seen in
ctassropm praclice,

To ensure students who are identified as GnT
andfor higher ability are calered across the
curriculum. Evidence of this should be in teachers’
planning.

Differentiated planning is implemenled for the
academic enrichment class to extend learning
opporlunities beyond those available to peers in
other classes. This is evidenced by 1ailored lesson
plans that include advanced content and
challenging aclivities designed specifically for
these students. Furlhermore, successful sirategies
and ideas developed for the enrichment class are
alsa adapted for higher-abilily sludenls in olher
classes

Ta ensure teachers are given opporunilies lo
upskill in  their practice re., Gifted and
Talented/Higher Abilily students

This year, a self-review of the Gilted and Talenled
program is underway. which will include a survey
for 1gachers to gather their insights and feedback
about support they may need for this.

SPORTS ENRICHMENT

Stludents Independently Run REC.

In Term 1 the Year 85 in Rooms 22 and 23 led {his
and in Term 4 Year 7's from these classes will
runfsupport the stafl at each Rec activily.

Studenls are highly pedorming alhleles (nol jusl a
'keen’ sporlsperson),

This is done both inside class and school and
outside school, with many students competing in
rep camps for the year like for example PYC al the
end of the year. They are supported in this aspect
well. Zone Days and Competition Days give the
sludenls lhe atiliies as a platform to showcase
their Lalents.




MENTORS: Students show |leadership and help lo
build sludent confidence in sporls programmes at
school,

This is also enforced by CBH and Mr E for all
sludanis lo show lheir leadership in our service on
hosting rec on Thursdays period 5 This is an
opporlunity for them to work on their individual
leadership skilis while being led by their teachers.

Students fully commit to any sporls leams lhey are
involved in.

Aqain 1his is enforced by Mr E and CBH. Studants
have Lheir booklels where they record their times
and days for when and where lhey need to be. The
training doc is uploaded to lhe Google Classroom
each week to allow sludents to remain organised.

Students maintain & high level of school attendance
(94%).

This is put in the contracl and is rigorously
enforced by Mr E and CBH. The follow up is good
for studenls and parenls lo know aboul how well ar
poor their kids are doing.

Sludents attend homework club ance a week.

This & a mandalory Perod Six lessen on &
Monday for them to calch up with work. They
already lose a lat of 1ime with most of lhem going
out playing sports. This is a lesson for them to
refocus an what is the prionly, lheir academics.

BANDS

To develop students’ musical ability by rehearsing,
istening, wriling and pedorming as a part of a
group led by effeclive and appropriate coaches,

This year, we have sfectively developed our
students’ musical ahililies by providing consistent
opporunilies  for them to rehearse, listen,
compose, and perform within a group/band seting,
These experiences have been guided by our highly
skilled teachers growing both collaboralive and
individual skills.

To develop students” individua! musicianship skills
wilhin a group by using and maintaining equipmenl
that is belilling and fit for purpose.

Wa have ensured thal sludents are using and
maintaining musical equipment that is nat only fit
for purposa but alse enhances their rehearsals,
Through this, students have gained confidence
notably thraugh regular performances also.

To ensure ALL bands are given the apportunity of
regular and meaningful perdormance oppofunities
as well as enter competitions to showease their
talant.

Bandquest was again attended by 2 bands this
year and they won an individual prize for
vecalisalion, Bands have also had the opportunily
lo pedorm at assemblies and individuals have
supported playing inslruments for school singing at
limes.

To continue to promaole and enhance our GnT
Bands inlo halislic, well-rounded perdormers,
ensuring the quality of the whole pedormance is of
a high standard.

We have successfully continued to promote and
enhance our GaT Bands, develgping them into
holistic, well-rounded performers. Through a focus
cn hoth their musical and performance skills, wa
have ensured that the quality of the entire
performance, musically, visually, and in terms of
audience engagemesni remains of a high standard -
but always room for improvement. By paying close
attention tg all aspects of their presentation, our
studenls are growing inte confident perdormers




who deliver polished, professional performances
that showcase their talenl and dedicalion. Notably
with some going on to win major honours at our
2024 Tatent Quest!

G AND T GROUPS

To give opporlunilies for our stidenls to participate
in activities lhal showcase their lalent including
campelilions and exhibitions. e.g.. Passion Pursuits
elite perlormance groups, GaT Bands and
Perormance Groups efc.

MI Musical will be held this year over bvo nights for
thoze students who have an interast in showcasing
lhese specific talents.

im Term Four we also have our Cullural
perdormance night. Some of these groups also
perform 1throughout the year in assemblies or down
at local schools and rest homas.

To provide more explicit opportunities to caler for
Higher Ability students lhrough various activities
eg. cooking, Performing Ars, Dance, Music,
Academics, Leadership et¢ such as being done in
tha speech, spelling and maths competitions.

Students have had the opporlunity to parlicipate in
a diverse array of activities across the curriculum,
representing the schoo! as gifted and talented
individuals. These aclivities include the Cooking
Master Chef competition, the Wearable Ards
Competition, 728 dance at AIMS and the South
Auckland { Auckiand wide Kathex compslition.
Additionally, students have showcased their skills
in the Rehu Tai Speech competition, the APPA
Speach competition, and the E-Sporls compelition.
We also had a couple of students engaged with the
RTLB Gifted and Talented programme, further
enhancing their talents and experiences in various
domains.

To conlinue to develap our winning Hip Hop team -
'728's". Ensure thay are given the opporlunity of
regular and meaningful perdormance opporlunities
as well as enter competitions 1o showcase (hsir
talent.

The 728 crew represented the school at the recent
AlMs games in Tauranga. We have locked inlo
olher compelilions but there are none. Hopeafully
some more opportunities will anse such as
Express Yourself, The crew are also signed up to
paricipate in the Santa Parade at South Mall al the
end of the year.

To continue to develop our Cullural talent - e.g.
TMKR. Ensure they are given regufar and
meaningful performance opporlunities as well as
enter competitions {where apprapnate).

Going to Tolara Hospice and having the preschool
attend gave the TMKR team a chance to showcase
their talenls.

Establish and maintain  the whole schoaol
programme Kl Breakoul Buzz in conjunction with
DP:. Guidance and Support ang lhe leadership
team members who are running the programme.
This programme should support identifying and
catering for gifted and lalented sludents in all
curriculum areas, especially those 'spikey’ kids and
twice exceptional.

This year has seen the completion of four Breakaout
Buzz Modules Initially, student seleclion was
difficult as teachers tried to identity students who
may benefit from a general extension.

This process was improved by selecling the
sludents specifically for ihe type of Breakout Buzz,
where sludents were passionate about the focus.

Breakout Buzz is parl of \he Gifted and Talented
Self Review for 2024,




GUIDANCE AND SUPPORT

OBJECTIVES

AMALYSIS

Learning Support Cooardinator

To ensure all students with moderate 1o high
learning needs receive the appropriate supporl to
enhance their learing and progress.

Tha objeclive of supporling students with moderate
to high learning needs is met through targeted
programs  like Mumicon, iDeal, and ESOL.
Additional resources such as Word Chain, AWS,
Colourlul Semantics, Spring inte Math, and Break
Out Buzz address specific literacy and numeracy
gaps of exlensions where required. Leaming
Assistants and Deputy Principals provide in-class

supporl,

To conlinue to supporl parents and YWhanau to
partner successfully with their school ang develop
an understanding of leaming support processes.

Whanau receives clear explanations of referral
palhways and lhe benefits of involving external
agencies. Practical strategies and resources are also
provided to help families supporl children with
dystexia and other leaming needs at home.
Individual Education Plans {IEFs) in Terms 2 and 4
furlher equip whanau with knowledge about their
child's nexl sleps and lhe suppont being provided.

Ta supporl stall in schools to lift their capabilily 1o
belter meet the neads of [zarnears.

The Learning Support Coordinater (LSC) conducts
tailored assessments and implements strategies that
bhenefit individual students. BAS tranglators are
organised for assessments to diferentiate between
lfearning needs and language barriers. Additionally,
the LSC provides supporl 1o individual students or
small groups wilhin classes to ensure targeted
assistance is available as needed. Relevant
professional development is attendad ta upskill stalf
and share sHective lips and stralegies for supporling
learmers with specific needs.

ESOL

To ensure the ESOL programme largets students'
needs and the students involved in Lhe
programme are engaged and molivated.

Practical learning inilialives Llhalt emphasise oral
language and visual aids are used. These elements
accelerate the learning and wsage of the English
fanguage, fostering a more interactive and
supportive environment thal encourages sludent
parlicipalion.

To provide supporl and communication around
how ESOL students can be suppored in class to
enable access 1o the curiculum

Engaging and user-friendly resources and sirategies
are shared wilh teachers, equigping them with
eflective tools to support ESOL learnars in lhe
classroom. This  ensures that students can
parlicipate at a level appropriate to their individual
needs,

To provide information 1hat can suppor the ESOL
learners through reflection and analysis.

Insights about learners are provided during activities
such as Speed Dating and reporl writing, facilitating
discussions arcund studenls’ progress and next
learning sleps.  Additonally, lhe mid-year and




end-of-year leamning support reports offer valuakle
data and anecdotal notes about each student,

To upskill and supporl lhe new ESOL Teacher to
perform their role successfully.

Exlemal professional develapment sessions provide
effeclive stralegies for teaching ESOL learners,
while attendance at South Auckland Intermediale
Schools ES0L groups fosters collaboration and
idea-sharing. Additionally, the Kura Reo teachers
engage in regular meelings to discuss sludenl neads
and collaboratively plan, ensuring the new ESOL
teacher receives comprehensive supporl in their
role.

Learning Assistants

To support students’ learning through careful
placement in classes based on effective and
positive relalionships with Learning Assistants.

The Leaming Assistant {LA} timetable is regulady
updated to ensure 1hal each student is matched with
lhe appropnate LA, This placement considers
various factors, including the specific learning or
behavioural needs of sludents and any professional
development or upskilling lhe LA has received.
Addittanally, the posilive relationships that students
have with particular LAs are taken intc account,
ensuring that placements are efeclive and
rasponsive to each student's requiremants.

To ensure funded students get their allocation of
LA suppart.

The implemeniation of a chacklist that tracks funded
sludenls weekly. This checklist ensures that each
sludent receives. at a minimum, their allocated hours
of support. MHotably, many sludents receive additional
hours beyond their funding, and unfunded studenis
also benefil from receiving LA suppart.

Te provide epportunities for Leaming Assistants to
be upskilled in Learming Inlerventions eg. AWS,
Spring into Math etc,

Learning Assistanis (LAs) have received largetad
upskilling in learning interventions such as Spring
into Math and AWS. They have also had
opporlunities  to  observe one anolher during
programs like Numicon, enhancing the pool of
capable LAs who can eNectively deliver these
interventions.  Weekly meetings are held on
Tuesdays, focusing on varigus topics relevant to the
identified needs. ensuring that LAs conlinually
develop their skills and slrategies to suppar student
leaming effaclively.

High Fliers

To ensure this leaming intervenlion has value
added for lhe students involved.

iDeal is an evidence-based intervention designed
for both students with dyslexia and thoss who need
supporl wilh reading and spelling. Students bensfit
from smaller groups where they work with others of
similar abilities.

Mumicon is a multi-sensery mathematical resource
designed o bhelp children develop a  strong
underslanding of number concepts and




mathematical operations. Again, students benefit
from a smaller group where they are encouraged to
parlicipate and feel successful wilh their knowledge.

To upskill the Leadership member taking LS:
Humanities in the running of this programme.

An LA was designated o lead tha iDeal intervention
programme, receiving supporl from the Leamning
Supporl Coordinator {LSC) far assessments and
student seleclion. Professional developmenl was
funded by the RTLB service al lhe starl of the year,
ensuring that the LA was well-prepaced. Additionally,
the Depuly Principal: Guidance and Suppor
medelled lessons based on grior experience wilh the
Crogramme.

in-Class Intervontions

Sludents are assigned Learning Assistants based
an identified needs and appropriate intervenlions
are to lake place within lhe class.

Specific students are allocated LAs who have
recaived targeted training in relevant programs such
as BLEENZ, Spring into Malh, and AWS, enabling
tailored  supporl.  Additionally,  sludents  with
behavigural needs are matched with LAs who have
established strong relalionships wilk them.

Learning Assistants continue to be upskilled in,
in-class interventions that can address a variety of
needs.

Each Monday, LAs meet to discuss and address any
needs that have arisen from the previcus weak,
ensuring ongoing supporl for  students. Qn
Tuesdays, a Umetable of upskilling sessions is
implemented, run by both LAs and teachers, so far
coverng essential topics such as ESOL supporl and
Mumicon.

Learning Support

To caler for the learning nesds of all groups of
students (well below, below, at and above) based
on data and relevant need.

Data from maths and humanitiss is inilially analysed
by clessroom teachers and then furlher reviewed by
practice [eaders and passion pod leaders to ensure
a comprehensive  underslanding  of  student
performance. In the classroom. sludenls may he
grouped by mixed ability or levelled according to
their needs. Those requiring additional support are
idenlified through this data analysis and may receive
in-ctass assislance from Deputy Principals or
Learning Assislants. Alternatively. students may be
placed in a high-fliers intervenlion graup, ensuring
targeted and efeclive support tailored to their
specific leaming needs.

Hard launch and maintain the Learning Supporl
Register developed at Ml by ceasing the vse of
now redundant systems,

The Wall of Fame highlighls students who have
learning, behavioural, medical, or whanau needs.
Addilionally. lhe Leaming Support Register,
maintained by lhs Learning Support Coordinalor
(L3C}), is regularly updated ta reflect current student
needs, including the addition of new sludents.

Implement and maintain the use of the Learning
Pathway for sludents being supported by lhe Gas

Students of concern are identified and discussed
during our GaS5 meetings which are held every
Monday. LSC shares observations and data




team through the Learning Support Register
developed al Ml

collected from Snapshot and dyslexic screening in
order for the student to receive extermal supporl ie
ETLB or MoE. Once an agreed decision is reached,
The sludent is entered on the Learning Supporl
Register. Therealer all correspondence recsived
and discussions during our G85S meslings are added
to the register clicking on the link. One portal for
easy access for datz for sludents who are current or
who may have lefl.

Implement and maintain lhe use of student
Snapshot dala to suppord sludents referred to the
GnS team,

Once stafl have completed the G&S Referral, LSC
will administer tha Smrapshot! assessments which
alsa includes Dyslexic screening if required. Data is
analysed and is used in line of teacher meslings to
create individualised interventions and strategies for
tigh needs students.

Efectively transilion and upskill the new DP: Gas
so they are able to complete lhe role to a high
standard.

The Oepuly Principal: Guidance and Supporl {DP:
Ga5) has adapted well to the position, receiving
supparl from lhe leadership team and the expertize
of the Leamning Supporl Coordinator {LSC} as
needed. Sirong prior and ongoing relationships with
the RTLB and Minislry of Education services have
further facilitated |he upskilling process. Throughout
the year, relevant professional dewvelopment has
besn altended, along with participation in forlnightly
Kahui Ako SENCO meelings 1o discuss praclices
and updates from other schools, ensuring 3
comprehensive understanding of the mla and its
responsibifities.




HAUORA

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

GRADUATE PROFILE

Introduce the M Graduate FProfile lo Year 7
students and reinforce for Year 8's the imporance
of this. Ensure thera is a deep understanding of
wiat it means by drawing meaninglul links to our
programme of learning as well as teaching and
reporling to it explicilly.

The Graduate Profile teaches sludents valuable life
skills for building posilive and strong friendships and
relalionships later in life. Il also provides students
with the tools to become crilically awara individuals
and the knowledge to act angd behave appropriately
at schoal,

Mote from LaT:

As | look through the LaT Handbook we currently
have al least lhree different reimagining of the Key
Compelencies and WZC Values: the Graduala
Profite, Ml ONA, and MI Learners Keys to Success.
On top of this , we now have the Understand, Know,
Do, framework coming, which is also a set of
competencies. There will need to be a review of how
we choose to communicate any competencies to our
teachers, studenls and parenis in 2025 o avoid
egnfusion,

KEEPING QOURSELVES SAFE

Teach sludenis a range of safe practicas that they
can use when inleracting with other people, both
onling and face-to-face. Teach sludenis how to
recognize the diflerence between heallhy and
unheallhy relationships, and encourage students
who have been or are being abused to seek help,

Students develop sirategies to keep lhemselves and
others safe wilhin lheir own homes, They also gain
an understanding of the ‘right’ and ‘wrong’ ways 10
think, acl, and behave both in public and at horme.

NUTRITION
Develop a practical and technical understanding of
personal nutrition.

Education that focuses on healthy living, choices,
and habits, particulary within the eommunity, Year 7
classes incorporated lhe Zespri challenge alongside
nutrition, where students used pedometers ta track
their  daily steps, promoting exercise and
encouraging a more aclive rouling for aur learmers.

Teachers also included information about minimally
proecessed foods versus ultra processed food, This
simple but imporant distinction also allows students
to clearly see lhe difference between food thal is
good for iheir bodies and food that isn't. Ultra
processed food tends to come in wrapping that also
harms our envirgnment.

M| SELF AND PEERS

Create meaningfu! links bebween Hauora and haw
we care for ourselves and how physical changes
affect us as we grow.

It teaches siudents valuable life skills for building
positive and strong friendships and relationships later
in life. It provides resources to help sludents become
critically aware individuals with the knowledge to act
and behave appropriately at school. It also teaches
sludenis how to connect caring for themselves with
treating others respectully and promotes student




leadership when building relationships outside of
schoaol,







Literacy learning resources up on walls - this can be
revisited and more basic fundamentals should be
displayed for learners to use.

The Humanities Passion Pod Leader will be
responsible for featuring sludenls’ work in the
schoal newsletter, main office and the Room 62
comidor,

Student work collected from teachers every term -
disptayed in Room 62 carridor, library and outside
the PLL oflice.

Teachers maintain up ta dale and relevant tracking
to suppor them in planning and communicating
students’ strenglhs and areas for improvement.
This can be captured in tha following ways:
- Student-centred planning reflactions
- Bummative assessment data
- Dngoing formative assessment data such
as Reading group assessment sheels,
learning conversations and work samples.
- Evidence of lracking againsl lhe Lileracy
Learning Progressions.

Assessment tools:

PATs {Comprehension and Yocabulary - Term 1 &
4}

Probes - every student at least once {PM used
where nacessary)

Reading E-asTTle - Term 1, 2, 3 & 4,

Wriling E-asTTle and moderation - Term 1 & 3.
Tracking updaled as assessmenis are completed.
Weekly reflections - target learners.

Guided reading sessions,

Maoderate samples and  Probe

assessments.

writing

Moderation done hwice a year.
Probe completed once {unfess another Probe s
NECESSArY).

Pravide professicnal development on  various
assessment methods, including Probes, e-asTTle,
reading skills programmes, Slruclured Literacy
ang writing skills.

DP:PLL ang DP:LAT run PC sessicns during
Passion Pod meelings.

AWS

E-asTTie Writing Moderation

Reading E-asTTle report breakdown

Group guided reading sessions

Continue with the implamentation of the Structured
Literacy programme “Agility Wilh Sound™ for
targated students,

LAs, Humanities and OPs run AWS sessions for
Literacy learning supporl.

Word Chain available for selected students that they
access daily and can access at home if they have a
device.

Establish cnteria 1o assess efective teaching and
tracking of lhe New Zealand Curriculum in
Humanities.

Curricilum referenced when planning overviews are
created o ensure everylhing covered in Hurmanilies
aligns wilh the expectations in the Curriculum

DATs incerporated in Humanilies planning.

Teachers commit o lhe use of e-asTTle for
Reading and Writing to develop knowledge of the
NZC and increase the validity of OTJ's. Teachers
use moderalion to assess student work 1o ensure
cansistency in assessment.

Reading e-asTTle-Term 1, 2, 3 & 4,
Wriling e-asTTle and moderation - Term 1 & 3.

Conlinue to use our schoolwide Inguiry model
effectively, while using a variety of 1opics to ignite
cunicsity among students.

Integrated within planning.




Consistenily uliise small group-guided reading | Timetabled fortnightiy library sessions.

sessions to enhance students’ reading mileage. Allocated group-quided reading sessions - this has
been a focus for lhe Humanities tearn {ensuring we

are doing these consislently}.
Reading Champion Programme.




LIBRARY

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

To ensure the maintenance of all library systems
including:
a.
t.
C.

collections
management system
gistribulion of:
i. in-class, on-limelable ima
ii.  formn class allocations,
basic organisalion
sludeni padicipation and leadership in
the Library
physical envirenment inciuding:
i. soft furnishings
ii. permanent fixtures
involvement in curriculum design and
resourcing
mle in promgling  reading  for
enjoyment in lhe school and wider
communily

Collections and Management System: The hbrary
successhully maintained its collections, ensuring
resources were current and well-organised.
Distribution of In-Class, On-Timetable Time and
Form Class Allgcations: All form classes were
successfully alorated library time, and ihe in-class,
onlimelable  sessions generally ran  smoothly
throughout the year, providing consistent access to
library resources for students,

Basic Organisation: The library maintained a high
level of organisation, ensuring books and resources
were easily accessible to students and stali. Systems
for barrowing and relurning items remained efficient,
contributing to the librarys overall effectiveness. At
the time of wiiling, it remains to be seen whether the
wark we pul in at lhe star of the year to gel parents (o
sign forms to indicate they would pay for lost or
damaged books make the return process in term Four
any easier. Time will tell.

Student Participation and Leadership: Student
involvement was a highlighl this year, wilh many
laking on leadership roles within the library. Their
conlrbulions to the day-to-day operalions were
valuable, fosterng a sense of ownership and
responsibility. 1 is greal to have ancther avenue for
student leadership oulside of the well eslablished
leadership roles in the school,

Physical Environment: The physical enviranment of
the library, ingluding soft fumishings and permanent
fixtures, was weall-maintained. This crealsd a
welcoming and comfortable space for sludents lo
read, study, and engage with resources.

Involvement in  Curriculum  Design  and
Resowrcing: The library played an active role in
supporting  curriculum design and  resourcing,
providing materials that aligned wilh classroom
lgarning and ensuring that students had access to
relevanl and useful content.

Promoting Reading for Enjoyment: The library was
highly successful in promoling reading for enjoymeant
bolh within the schoo! and in the wider community.
Evenls, reading challenges. and displays helped
foster a culture of reading, encouraging students to
engage with books beyond academic requirements.

hours.

To promote the library in a variely of ways 1o
encourage students into the library during opening

Celeste MacDonald has done an outstanding job of
pramoting the library in 2024. II's difficult to imagine
whal mora could have bean done to make lhe library
such a vibrant hub for a wide range of school events.
Book Week was a prime example of haw Celeste
successlully promoted reading, the library. and a love




of literacy within the schoogl. She leaves behind big
shoes to Ml and will be greatly missed.

Through  discussion and uwsing  curriculum
overviews purchase books and have displays in
the library 1hat are linked to topics being taught in
clagses,

Celeste MacDenald has made a significant effort to
offer Nalioral Library books, as well as books
purchased by the school, to teachers for use in their
form and humanities teaching programs. She also
promoled apps like the Libby library app. enabling
sludents to access books anywhere. Addilionally,
Celeste developed a Padlet that provides teachers
with access to levelled school joumals and
accompanying leacher supporl malerials, helping
them better understand curriculurm expeclations for
their learners..

To regularly discuss wilh Passion Pod Leaders
and teachers about recommendations of books to
support the provision of a library colleclion lhat
supports and  enriches the  educational
programmes of the school,

These discussions have happened and passion pod
meetings ang Celeste MacDonald has been in
dllendance. Resources have been either created qr
pravided based on these conversalions. One notable
example was the crealion of a Padlet that allows
lsachers 1o find Journals and Teacher Suppor
Material in a much easier manner than that actual
School Joumal Website,

To provide a library collection that develops a
reading culture lhroughout the school.

Again Book Week is a fanlastic example of this, as
the offering of homework club and the inclusion of
Pause, Prompt, Praise as parl of 1he homework club
Duty that teaches attendance aon  Monday,
Wednesdays and Thursdays.

For the library to have visibilily on the school
website and social media platforms.

The library has had visibility on the school's Facebook
pages, again book week was probably the most
visible evenl for lhe library as something fantastic
meadia was produced for display.

Te provide opporlunilies for students to lead
library iniliatives.

The student libranans have been gainfully employed
all year and this is a fantastic leadership opporunity
that is outside the typical sporling or cultural
lzadarship opporlunities at Ml

For Book Week to become an annual event
coordinated and run by the Librarian.

Book Week was a resounding success, and it's hard
to imagine it not becoming an annual event, given
how much both stafl and students enjoyed it.




LIFE SKIHLS

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

TAHA HIMENGARD

Ensure a focus group of stafl is set up to supporl
the implementalion of Ihis programme ang how il
may need to change depending on the needs of
leachers and students. An example of lhis may
be connecting students with difflerent stordes or
examples that aid in emolional requlation,
mindfulness and well-being,

This program would banefit from a refresh to ensure
ils content eflaclively advances the literacy levels of
our students. A slronger emphasis on global
storylelling could enrich the learning experience,
Yhile Maon gods should remain lhe central focus,
encouraging sludents to make conneclions with other
cultures, deities, slories, messages, and morals waould
broaden the scope and allow for mors dynamic
reading lessons during Taha Hinengara. These
lessons wouldn't need 1o follow a guided reading
format, but using levelled reading content could
enhance learning outcomes. This approach would
also reduce the refiance on students’ prier knowledge,
making lessons mare engaqging and accessible for all.

MI SKILLS

Develop leachar's practice to engage students in
basic “life skill' lessons determined throughout
Terms 1, 2 and 3.

MI Skills is an interesting unil, especially considering
thal the types of life skills people need are constantly
evalving. For instance, some cars no {onger come
with spare tires but instead include inflalable
polyurethane glue to temporarity fix a fat until a
mechanic can make the proper repair. Another
example is the leaming from the ASB Ge! Wise
Programme, which ieaches studenis to recognise
online scams; skills that may be more relevant for
today's learners. However, MI Skills remains a
valuable way to focus on the gssential tasks sludents
need o master before leaving school. There doesn't
seam 1o be any need for significanl changes 1o this
unit in the near future. It also provides teachers wilh
the creative freedom to effectively teach practical
skills they deem important,

FIRST AID

To engage sludenls in sffective firsl aid practice
that will provide them wilh safe ways of dealing
with basic physical trauma.

A first aid course refresher during the holidays helped
stafl feel mare confident about teaching first aid
concepts. It became clear lhal many students were
unsure how fo respond o common emergency
situations, such as falls or sporling injuries. This
content is direclly relevant lo sludenls’ lives and
provides important knowledge for lhemn Lo leam.

SERVICE

Suppor  teachers in delivering high qualily
programmes of learning and experiences around
service o others and the community,

a. Ensure service is maintained as a
lang term engagemenl with lhe
objectives of our programme,

b. Ensure thal Ml ONA s
reinlroduced and valee is placed
on lhis conecept.

Service, overseen by the Deputy Principal: Studenl
Programmaes, has not yet become a fully ingrained
practice at the school. While some classes have
maintained their service responsibilities, many have
not, and consistent follbw-up is needed. The
distinction bebveen service overseen by the DP ang
the actual learning students do about the concept of
serviceé needs to be clearer. The Community Council
presenls a Service Award at assemblies, but it has
sometimes been difficult to find a deserving recipiant.




Additionally, Ml ONA could need more premotion and
value across lhe school. However, given that it is , in
reality, yet anclher reimagining of the Key
Competencies and NZC  Values, can il be
incarporated into somelhing else? le., can the
Graduate Profile drive service? If your class service is
picking the bark off the GOAT, how can a teacher
meaningfully drive leaming around that for seven
weeks? A review of the service program s
recommended for 2025 to explore improvements.




MATHEMATICS

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Conlinue to develop a collaborative cullure
where we use lhe strenglhs and knowledge of
aur teachers 1o suppor student learning.

Structured  collaboralive planning and discussions
during Wednesday afternoon meelings and Passion
Pads have continued. In these meetings, teachers
share overviews and plan lessons, utilising their
individual strenglhs to address lhe needs of both
higher and lower learnars. Additionally, gaps idenlified
across learmmers have led to the collaborative
development of class warm-ups that can be
implemented across the snlire team, promoting
consistency and effectiveness in teaching.

Use real-life contexls while learning through
concrete materials to develop new cancepls and
student agency.

The integration of Nrich leaming lasks helps sludenls
undarstand how maths applies (o real-world siluations,
providing conlext and purpose for their lzarning.

Additionally, problem-salving gquesticng arg
incorporated  to ensure  cultural  responsiveness,
supporting students in  grasping concepls in a

meaningful way. Students are also able to camy out
their own statislical investigalions, forming Lheir own
questions and analysing the data collected to form
conclusions.

Improve differentiated teaching praclicss to meel
sludent’s specific needs, including eflective
assessmenl lo diagrose sludent learning needs.

lkan lests are utifised to identity and address specific
gaps in sludenls’ learning, allowing for largeted
instruclion. Group lessons are omganised to cater Lo
different abifity levels, ensuring Lhal all sludents
receive approprate supporl. Additionally, analyses of
PAT and E-asTTle assessmenis help identify learners'
gaps and provide a specific focus for lessons, both on
an individual and group basis. Analysis of this data
also forms the basis on which students are selected for
furlher support both in-class and as parl of Numicon,

Create meaningful links within and bebaeen
strands in malhematics 50 subjecls do nat
become siloed.

Teachers congislenlly kink the strategies used for
solving different lypes of guestions and completling
tasks, reinforcing the  interconnectedness  of
malhematical concepls. Addilionally, slrand teaching is
allernated weekly with number knowledge. ensuring
that students see ihe relationships between different
mathematical slrands and understand how leamnt
knowledge can be applied in differenl areas of the
maths curncalum.

Sustain he problem-solving approach and the
use of rich tasks to embed malhemalical
cancepls.

Gmoup lessons starl with a Rich Leamning Task (RLT) ta
assess students’ understanding of the question and
concepts befere adjusting the fesscons 1o suit the
group's abilities. During 1his process. questions are
unpacked in parls to check for comprehension and
ensure that students grasp what is being asked.




Mainlain a high number of observations,
co-teaching and modalling lessons for teachers
to strengthen and reinforce best praclice.
Practice Leader to create a schedule for
observations throughout lthe year utilising their
release time.

The Practice Leader has an established weekly
timetable that allows her to support teachers through
various  methods,  including  lesson  modelling,
co-teaching, and  providing  observalions  wilh
conslruclive  feedback. During mestings, areas
requiring clarification regarding specific teaching
stralegies, e.g., how to do box-and-whisker plols, are
discussed and madelled o enhance understanding.
Additionally, incidental discussions among members of
the Pangarau team occur frequenlly, fostering an
environmant of callaboralion and ongaing upskilling

Passion Pod Leader 1o engage wilh the DP:
Learning and Teaching to upskill on efiective usa
of the e-asTTLe and PAT testing. This is lo belter
inform Pangarau's adaptive overview and plan.

The Deputy Principal of Learning ang Teaching actively
paricipates in meetings 1o discuss assessment data,
focusing on how this information can be eflectively
uliised by the team to set targets and plan for future
instruction,




M

OBJECTIVES

AMALYSIS

To build on students’ ability (o present at a
performance level.

Sludenls who presant an MITY often leave with a
strong sense of accomplishment, bhaving had the
chance to speak in front of the entire school. This
experience boosts their confidence, espacially when
lhey present their work in the classroom or engage in
public spesking opporunities. Far many, it's a
memaorabla rileslone in their schob! journey and
different students are always keen lo give it a go.

To include more students into the tech side of
MiTV through a Period Six (if the ability of staff
allows)

This hasn't happenead Lhis year, but I'm curious to see if
sludents would be interested in participating in a Period
Sik. This would be an optional session after school
where sludents could develop skills ar collaborate on
projects outside regular class hours. Exploring this in
2025 could add a new layer to lheir |earning
experience, providing dedicated lime for creafive,
technological, or cullural grojects that right not il inle
the regular schedule.

Ta refurbish 1the MITV studio tc ensure it is fil for
the purpose of filming, recording and
broadcasting by upgrading lechnical
requirements.

This year, we've had to upgrade 1o a new Tricaster, as
aur previous ona finally gave up the ghost. With this
naw technology comes fresh opporlunities for leaming
and growlh, as well as a chance o elevate our
production quality,. One area we are particulady
focussed on is figuing out the green screen capabililies
of the new system. This task is currently being explored
by our MITV crew in collaboralion with our IT Manager.

Continus {o vary the places where we film MITV
araund the school and go live from naw
locations via MITV,

Expanding MITVs filming localions across the school
would be an exciting, albeit challenging, goal.
Transporing equipment  around diferent  school
locations could presant technical challenges, such as
inconsistent audio or visual gualily. However, we've
already starled filming nen-live segments in various
school areas, bringing in diverse backgrounds and
environments while mainlaining broadcasl quality.

Keep on top of youlube as sellings change all
the time with this free live solution that can afect
the day-to-day running of MITV.

We conduct daily sound checks and always verify our
YouTube account each morming before going live 1o
ensure  MITV  runs  smoothly  without  technical
interruptions. This altention to detail helps us maintain a
professional standard and reinforces studenis' pride in
thair work on MITY.




MONDAY MAGIC

OBJECTIVES

AMALYSIS

COMLIT

Develop students’ communication skills across a
variety of contexls by exercising their ability o
actively listen and contribute as well a5 develop
oral language skills in both formal learning and
informal circumslances.

This year lhere was a deliberate effort in
communication literacy lo facilitale more in-depth
discussions between siudenis. The inclusion of specific
content, such as {epical social issues, aimed to provide
meaningful lopics for students to discuss, rather than
focusing solely on communication methods. This
approach is pant of an ongoing effort to add greater
academic depth to the content taught in form time
subjects.

MOMNEY MOJO

To deliver defiberale acls of izaching around the
financial capability 1o provida students wilh new
knowledge and vocahulary and enable students
to discuss firancial capabilily and how this skill
impacts their lives.

This was also the case with Money Mojo, where there
was a deliberate eflor to introducs higher-leval eontent,
particularly for larget learners around ar above early
Level 4 of the New Zealand curriculumn. It's imporant to
continue deepening the fypes of eonlent pravided to
students in form time subjects.

NEW ZEALAND HISTORY

Expand students’ understanding of NZ History
and teach synihesis skills so they are able to
form informed opinions of historical pccurrences
and how they have shaped NZ loday.

For New Zealand history this year, conlent was
included to align with the new Aotearca History
curniculum. The aim was to show sludents the impact of
imparialism on both Hew Zealand's hislory and globally.
The events of colonisalion in Mew Zealand were
connecled lo a broader global story of power and
control. There werg also links made to the SMART
target for Term Four, aiming fo unily the various
messages wea give sludenls at Ml inlo a coherent
package.

FOUNDATION BASICS

Support Form Teachers in identifying students
gaps in basic competencies and then provide a
support programme that meels these needs
across a number of weeks and curficulum
areas.

PAT data revealed significant vocabulary gaps amang
many of our students. For example, only 22% of
sludenls knew what & “diagram™ was in the PAT
vocabulary test at the starl of the year. In response, a
vocabulary focus was infroduced for foundation basics.
Teachers were given explicit guidance on identilying
vocabulary gaps using the PAT data and building
vocabulary lists from levelled school journals that ation
with this dala.




MUSIC

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

To ieave Music class having a positive and
confidenl attitude loward thair own musical
journey through a functional and practical
learning programme,

We have consistenlly implemented a music
programme aimed at building a pesilive and confident
alitude among sludents toward their own musical
journays. This has been achieved through a purpose
built and praclical learning environment lhal engages
sludents with hands-on experience in music-making.
As wall a3 a new teacher this year, who brings a vast
array of talents and engaging lesson slructure,

To learn rhylhms, chords and melodies on
instruments such as the guitar, drums, voice,
ukulele, prano to a level where they can share
with their class in a performance setting.

8y focussing on rhythms, chords, and melodies (the
tune) across a range of inslruments such as, guilar,
drums, woice, ukulele, and keyboard, students are
able to develop their skills 10 a level where they can
confidently share lheir progress in class
performances. This emphasis on parformance has not
anly helped students showcase their lalents bul also
reinforeed their growlh in confidence and presentation
skills.

Ta work together in musical groups building on
team leaming capabililies in a musical setling.

Collaborative learning in musical groups has played a
significant rofe in building group  skills. Working
together in these groups has allowed sludents to learn
not just aboul music, but about cooperation,
leadership, and shared responsibilily, all of which are
essential in the arts as well as preparing the Year 8's
for High School These capabilities have extended
beyond music inlo olher areas of learning. conlributing
to a holistic approach 1o their development.

Ta research and create new music through the
use of melodies, compositions and songs making
clear flinks to Levels 2 and 4 of the NZ
Curriculum.

We have ensured that clear conneclions are made to
Levels 3 and 4 of the New Zealand Curficulum, There
is a focus alongside lhis of igniting creativity also.

To have an underslanding of musical concepts
and theary appropriate to their level and learing.

The integration of music theory and concepts
appropriate lo each studenl's learning level {and
where they're at on their instrument) has deepened
their understanding, providing them with the tools to
confidenlly express themselves musically.

To sing togethar as a class making clear and
deliberale links o cultural compelency of
authentic waiata,

A paricularly imporant component of the music
programme has been the focus on singing together as
a class. By making deliberate and aulhentic
conneclions lo waiata, we have ensured 1hal cultural
competencies are integrated into lhe moduls. This not
cnly promotes respect and understanding of Maor
culture but alse strengthens the students’ sense of
identity and community through shared cultural
experences.




PASTORAL CARE

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

To ensure that the in-school SWIS slill has a rmajor
role in training and rmentoring the Pastoral Care
Council and that time is allowed twice a week fat
marning tea and toilet doty at lunch) to continua to
facilitate this.

Our SWIS does an oulslanding job in leading our
Pastoral Care Council, meeting with lhem on a
weekly basis. Despite frequent reminders, lhey
consistently carry oul lhair toilet duty responsibilities,
These siudents are deeply engaged in the life of the
school and demonstrate leadership skills that extend
beyond their assigned roles.

To enzure the in school SWIS has the time to
meet with students aboul whanau issues and
oulside faclors that are affecting our students.

This happens consistently, and her dedication to our
students and whirau is truly commendahle. She
excels in this rale.

To ensure that the PC tearn continues to meet
once a week lo ensure limsly intervenlion for
children as regards to needs pefaining o health,
hehaviour, attendancs, famity supporl and
counselling.

Yes, this takes place every Monday. Students are
thoroughly discussed, with specific  agencies,
programs, interventions, and support methods being
applied wilh great focus and dedication.

To drive and successfully implemant the new
Edge Pastoral Care incidenl digital system that
leadership can see to find palierns in behaviour.

The new Edge Pastoral Care incidenl digital system
provides a powerul tool for tracking student
behaviour and identifying patterns. It allows
leadership to make data-driven decisions, ensuring
early intervention and more eMective, proactive
supporl for sludenls. By slandardising how incidents
are reported, the syslem also prormotes consistency
and accountability among staH, helping Lhe school
manage behaviour more effectively.




PERFORMING ARTS

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Explore and develop awareness of diferent dance
elements to express images, ideas and feelings in
dance.

Our Perorming Ards programme has focussed an
exploring and developing sludenls’ awarenass of
varous dance elements to express ideas, and
emaotions through high level devised leaming. Through
this programme, students have been able to use
mavement as a powerful means of communication,
anriching their crealive expression and confidence.

Encourage the use of topic-specific vocabulary
when sharing and discussing ideas in dance.

We have also encouraged the use of NZ Curriculum
vocabulary when discussing and sharing ideas in
dance. promoling & deeper understanding of the
subject and enabling students to adiculale their
thoughts clearly. This has buill on engagement and
carmmprehension of key concepts within dance and
Perlorming Arts leaming.

Develop an understanding of the history of hip
hop and how it has changed over lime making
links ta cullure and global movements.

A key component of qur programme has been
developing an undarslanding of the history of hip hop
and ils evolution over lime. By making connections 1o
culture and global movements, sludenls have gained
valuable insights into the significance of this dance
form, recognising its impact both locally and globally,
notably ils impact in Actearoa!

Prepare and presenl a dance using a varely of
choreographic processes [cannon, shapes, level
changes, formalions and fransitions) making links
ta Levels 3 and 4 of the NZ Curriculum,

In preparation for performances, students have
ulilised a range of choraographic processes, including
lhe stated canngn, shapas, ievel changes, formations,
and fransilions. These experiences have been linked
to Levels Three and Four of the New Zeatand
Curriculum, ensuring that lhe learning aligns with
educational strands while allowing for crealive
exploration. This sets students up for High School
extremely effectively.

Encourage high standards in dance by providing
ongoing feedback to groups and individuals to
taller prepare them for their final assessment and
awn performing arts journey.

Ye have always maintained high standards in dance
by providing ongoing leedback to balh groups and
individuals. This feedback has helped sludenls refine
lheir skills and better prepare for lheir final
assessments, equipping lhem for strong learming
outcomes

Where appropriate and relevant, take
opportunities to incomorate drama techniques into
studenls’ pedormances.

We have laken opporlunities to incorporate drama
technigues inte students’ pedormances. further
enhancing their exprassiveness. This approach has
built on their overall leaming experience, hlending
elements of dance and drama to strengthen students’
performance abililies.




PHYSICAL EQOUCATION

OBRJECTIVES

AMNALYSIS

Continue lo maintain a budget that will continue to
coverfreplace high use equipmenl (replace
equipment thrown out at the end of lhe year)

There is a slrict budget that is adhered to. There are
reqular slack takes done by our PE stafl with old and
tirad equipmenl gotten rid of. A gooad example would
he the new athielic equipment and trolley that will be
very useful for guiding and progressing for schoo!
sporls evenls.

Develop a two year rolling Curriculum to best
accommodate our studenls and their development
in Physical Education,

All of our lessons target different paces of practical
learning. We differentiate by offering students to line
up in thair ability groups - Gold, Silver, Bronze.

From there, studenis are arranged to stay in their
groups to play with or against each other.

CHer a differentiated programme to ensure all
students ara catered to.

Diierentiation parts of our lessans are covered in our
ahility graups: Bronze, Silver, Gold.
This involves PE equipmenl, such as dodgsballs
instead of volleyball to praclise a skill, or rubbery
donuis instead of weighted discus.

Cevelop resources for non-mainstream/different
spors students who are not usually exposed to
PE.

Fulling up the Learming Intention and Success Criteria
on the beard in the gym for introduclion and referral,
Teachers have specilic, targefed crileria 10 assess
students on. Feedback cards, where students have a
voice in how well they are doing, what areas they
have identified they wanl to get betier in and what
they enjoy ahout the subject. Queslioning students to
check in for understanding of (he lesson.

Conlinue to enhance and develop an assessment
programme 1o ensure all students are lracking
towards our objectives. {For example, alhletics
programme, lest at the slart, train and then test at
the end for improvement) Having more
opporunitizs for self-assessment.

We've introduced culiural games, like Kia 0 Rahi, into
our programme. Our  PE  teachers frequently
incorporate warm-up games inspired by island sporls
to help students get into the right mindsst for Lheir PE
lessons. This approach has positively influenced the
engagement of the sludents in PE classes.
Additionally, our Recrealion Games. which involve
full-school sporls rotations, include istand spors like
Lape and Anc. adding cultural diversity to our sporls
proqramime.

Teach Maori and Pacific Islands Sporls as parl of
o PE programme,

Maaori and Facific Isfand sports have been taught as
part of the PE and Rec programme, Ki o Rahi (Maaori}
and Lape {5amban]

Cevelop a safety plan for using the school pac

Waler safety is an important parl of lhe new aguatic
skills curriculum. sludenis are taught how ¢ uss the
pool salely, basic rescue lechniques and how to
manage thamsalves in lhe water.

Develop a programme for the use of the pool
during lessons

an aquatic skills program has heen developed for the
new pool. It includes water safety and core swimming




skills Ihat sludenls need to learn. It also incorporates
lhe understand no do framework from the new
curriculum. N is entirely a local curnculum dogument
that has been informed by previous Mew Zealand
swimming curriculum documents Mew Zealand water
safety.




SCIENCE

OBJECTIVES

AMNALYSIS

Cesign a Science programme that includes a
majority of time on  hands-on  practical
oppartunities where sludenis are able to engage
and communicate their igarning.

This science programme focussed on the four major
Earlh systems: the biosphere, geosphere, hydrosphere.
and atmosphere. Through hands-on activilies, students
explored how these systems interacl and supporl life on
Earth. Sludenls engaged in experiments, like the water
cycle, to better undersland how lhese spheres are
interconnected,

Students have communicated their learping through the
use of scientific models and olher hands-on activities.

Continug to make opporlunities to talk with and
ses in action what Iacal High Schools and
Primary Schools do regarding their Science
programmes in order to build more Science
capability within our learars.

We need to explore opporlunities to cannecl with the
Sclence Curdiculum leaders in both high schools and
primary scheols to discuss ways we can beller align our
programs.

Collaborate prior to upcoming modules during
Passion Pod meetings to discuss themes, overall
ideas, planning, etc. lhal all staff can share.

Planning dunng passion pod meetings about term
overviews, and creating lessons for all of science to use
and tweak to their own liking, based on the needs of
their individual classes.

Deciding at the end of the previous term what our focus
witl be for lhe following term, has been really baneficial
and allows the team time during the holidays to plan
their lessons in greater detail,

Wilh hwvo new teachers to the team this year, a buddy
system was sel up 1o ansure an experienced teacher
could pass on knowledge to the less experienced
buddy.

Ensure all Science leachers are able to make
explicit links to the Mature of Science andfor
Science  Skills Rubric when planning and
teaching. Make links with how Science has
changed the world and its relevance 1o them.

Passion Pod meelings involve many apporunilies to
lalk about the Mo5 andfor Science Skills 1o boost each
other's understanding araund how these can be taught
in class.

Links to these aspects are made in all planning docs
and is expected by everyone in lhe team.

Making links to the real world - this year's topics
allowed for this lo happen naturally.

Ensure planning is consistently done and where
possible make links to the module themes,
Ensure lhere is differentialion in planning and
teaching delivery to address and cater o a range
of student learning needs.

Ciferentiation is always encouraged and as Passion
Pod leader, somelhing | look out for each week as | am
checking planning - whether it is done by content,
process, output or the learming environmeanl they are in.
Teachers make changes lo the collaborative lesson
plans based on the neads of the classes and students
they teach.

Use a relevant fracking system that will caplure
sludents’ progress against lhe learning autcomes
for Science.

Weve emphasised the need to have lracking syslems
in Irant of us during lessans,

Gained a better understanding of what to look for in
studenl work to supporl our tracking of student

PrOress,




Progress lracked based on the NoS, Science Skills
Rubnc and the Science Capabilities.




SUSTAINABLE DESIGN

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Research real life issues and problems as a
platiorm to develop a businessfprototype and
ensure sludenis have appropriate space, tools
and resources {including stafing resources) to
‘invent’, creative solutions and develop a product
idea andfor protolype. Ensure students have a
real life’ design brief and space to share their
produclisolution ideas.

This approach has worked well overall this year. Term
Three was not as satisfactory, likely because the
selup classes at the starl of the term were missed
due to an absence, which impacted the flow.
However, some of lhe besl project outcomes were
achieved. paricularly with lhe landscape and
eco-nutrition brels, and quality exlernal parners
were engaged for supporl. This also provided
valuable professional developmant that iz highly
fransfarable.

The elements of the module, pardicularly the
sustainability and systems-thinking aspects and the
design projects, have worked effeclively, and
students are generally more confident discussing lhe
stages of the design process. Implementing a
preliminary, standalone design lesson prior to the
main design brief has proven beneficial, as it can be
referenced once students are engaged in the
‘raal-life’ project. Students have responded positively
to developing solulions for concrete problems, and
the social aspect of the cardboard furniture brief has
also been well-received.

mterestingly, this project revealed gaps in core
curriculum argas such as Mathematics, specifically in
accurate measurement, scale calculalions, and
planning cross-section and bird's-eye views.

Ensure sludents idenlify and can explain (he
glemenls of STEAM they are using in 1he solution
to their design brief and prototype development.

There 15 a desire to continug developing this
approach and to create a simplified rubric to support
students in discussing lhe STEAM elemenis thay are
using, especially within the arts, which is & broad
subject  area. The develepment of cultural
conneclions across all aspects of the module has
teen parlicularly rewarding, as it resonales well with
students and fosters crealive expression. One key
goal for this year was lo scaffold sludents more
effectively lo encourage erealivity and inspire them 1o
think cutside the box. This approach has worked well
and was paricularly evident in the eco-nutrtion
project.

Ensure cultural perspectives are incorporated into
all learning (links wilh MaP and PaP).

This approach has also workad exceptionally wall,
particularly in terms of Te Ac Maori and the
discussions around sustainability and systems, The
concept of mauri {energy or life farcel was explored,
along with what possesses mauri and how it is
diminished when resources are wasted or discarded.
This prompt has been highly efective in helping
sludents understand sustainable varsus
unsustainable syslems and has led to valuable




abslract discussions, especially on topics like plastic
{e.9., while plastic is made from gil, which has maun,
does a plaslic bag itself have mauri?),

The display c¢reated this year has been an invaluable
resource, and it is encouraging to see students
refering to it and suggesting additions. it is also
rewarding 1o observe students qrowing more
confident in expressing viewpoints that may difer
from those of their peers.

Ensure links with technolegy where appropriala
{both use in the design protess and in the product
or access o the product itseld),

Some progress has been made in this area however,
accessing cerlain lech design programmes took
considerable time, se this is not as well established
as intended. This will be a focus for nexl year, wilh
plans to remede! lhe classroom and incorporate more
design technology {both for lhe design process itself
and in the production of tangible items) to suppor this
goal. Students have vsed Tinkercad quite a bit to
create 30 items and have also collzborated in group
design projecis using Minecraft.

Cevelop a two year Curticulum  that s
differentiated each year to accommodate students
progress in their learping.

This programme is differentiated al the beginning
(during the firsl bwo weeks of frontloading) so that
Year 8 students are not repeating work but still have
lne opportunity to review it, while Year 7 studenls
learn the foundationzl concepis. Beyond this,
differentiation occurs through the design projects
sludenls underlake, which vary each vyear
Expectations are aligned with students’ abililies and
are reflected in their project outcornes. Projects can
als¢ be tallored to class interesls, suchk as spors
enrichment classes. Frontloading uses examples,
where possible, based on Ihase interests.

Currenlly, there is a focus on developing larger-scale
games lo leach more complex concepls, as thesa
were highly effective in the eco-nutrtion design brief
this year, One area for consideralion is how to extend
more capable students, particularly as limilaed time
with each class ofters means they finish a design brief
without the oppartunity for additional modifications
that could further challenge them. While incorporating
extensions within each design brief itself has been
considered, the unique nature of this class compared
to other curriculum areas means lhal each brief is
entirely new to all students, making this approach
challenging.

Mixed-group work has consistently produced stranger
oulcomes than briefs trialled by year laval, so adding
oplional extensions specifically for Year 8 students
may he a useful approach. This is & point for funlher
exploration, and insighls on how other similar
subjects address this within their programmes would
be valuable.




Ensurg at all imes lhe necessary Health and
Safety requirements for the rmunning of the
warkshop are maintained wilh the provision of a
supporl parson during the produclion phase of
aach module.

This collabgrative approach works very well with
Michael and Jo, as both subjects - Sust Design and
Envire Ed - work togelher with great flexibility. They
are incredibly supporlive of each olher, allowing for
lhe planning of weekly aclivitias 10 enable students 1o
complete Lheir work providing supporl when {ools are
in use, Given that the space is slll primarily a
classroom rather than a workshop, more hazardous
tools are not left out continuously, The design briefs
this year have also been struclured lo use fewer of
lhese types of lools.

Additionally, when activilies pose greater health and
safety congerns, Michael and Jo can work with
graups of students who may be less trushkworlhy with
sharp implemeants, creating more space for glhars to
waork. These students slill complate their project work
in a slighlly less complex manner, allowing for a tidier
setup. This enables closer supervision of groups as
they progress in their projects.




TE AQ MAORI

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Conlinue 1e supporl teachers to incorparate Te
Reo Maari in their evaryday leaching. by way of
Te Reo Macri PD at the beginning of each whole
staff maeling.

Slarted wilh Te Reo Maon PD in Term 1 and lessons
were enjoyed by stalf,

Good to have other staf membears get up and share
lheir axperise in Te Reo Maari.

The teacher of Te Ac Maori, in her capacity as
ASColLT AC:1, has been afforded lhe lime to he in
and out of classes during Form Time to supporl
teachers to corporate Te Reo Maor into lheir
everyday teaching.

School haka continues to be the main focus for Te
Rea teaching in lemrn one.

Ensure children who have Maori language
capacity are supported to represent the school
on relevant occasions e.q., Powhin. This
supporl will be facililated by the MAFP.

Students are encouraged (o join the Marae Commilles
and be part of the Powhiri process, even though thay
are not par of the Cultural Council. It has been good
to see ‘olher’ students stepping up in these areas
allowing us to grow cur M3or capacity and spread lhis
across the schowl.

The Cultural Cauncil bave really come into thair own
this yaar, taking the lead in Marae Slay powhiri aven
when there are no teachers present. It has been great
to see this develop.

The Cultural Council is also made available to supporl
teachers and students prior to their Marae Stays by
teaching karanga and whaikorero,

We have very few sludents who can speak or
understand Te Rec Maon, which is disappointing,
however we have ensured these sludents are
confident to take lhe lead in key roles or suppart
others in these roles, such as - kaikorero, kaikaranga,
kapa haka leaders etc.

Support the staff and sludents when
celebraling specific cultural weeks such as Te
Wiki o Te Reo Maon and Matariki,

Efforls were made o incorporate the aspirations of our
whanau this year. Te Wiki o Te Reo Maon celebrations
were focussed and encouraged padticipalion from a
range of groups. Teachers learned a song and haka o
pefdorm for the students. Sludent leaders hosted a
group of preschool students and visited the Tolara
Hospice to perlorm for whanau and staff. The kapa
haka group performed at assembly and 2 sludenls
from each class participaled in half a day of activities
in the hall.

Te Wiki o Te Reo Maorn resources were shared and
encouraged during this week

Te Ao Macri (Module Subject)

Develop the use of Te Reo Macri vocab when
sharing and discussing ideas in Te Ao Maori to
huild a common language among sludents.

The leacher of Te Ao Maord has found a good balance
in terms of vocabulary and basic sentence slruclures
to help build & comman language




Beginning with greetings, proper pronunciation of the
Maori alphabet and then maoving on to sentences to
ask and answer questions about:

- How they are feeling

- What they are doing

- What this object is {using t&nei, t&na,

t&ra)

Every lesson begins with Te Reo Maon and students
know what to expect when they arrive and forlunately
don't shy away fram it
Students are familiar wilh he lgarning outcomes and a
commaon [anguage is developing across the whole
school.
The same guestions and answers have been used
however next year we will begin an even year rotation
50 that over bwo years students learm to ask and
answer at least six different queslions,

Continue to create a differentiated learning
pregramme 1hat follows the Broadening Horzans
inquiry model as well as upholding Tikanga
Maori,

The teachar of Te Ao Macn has devaloped a learning
topic that enables sludents to understand how
Palynesians are connected and the imporance of
slorytelling in our societies,

Ensures all lopics follow the Broadering Horizons
model and sufficient time is spent exploring each of
the above aspects. This can be seen in the teacher’s
term ovarviews.

Tikanga Maori is definitely embedded in the teacher's
practice as a teacher of Te Ao M3on, as leader of
Marae Slays and Cultural Coungil.

Continue to build a deeper understanding of Lhe
importance of lhe Legend of Manurewa and how
this is an important par of our Manurewa histary.

All students learn about the story of Manurewa during
their term in Te Ao Macori. We hope to develap
rescurces for Humanities teachers lo allow for more
in-deplh explaration inte why stories are imporant in
Te Ag Macri,

Make links to other cultures’ Tikanga and
prolocots to supporl the leaming of Tikanga
Maori.

Within Te Ao Macn, the teacher is able 1o make links
ta other cultures’ likanga and protocaols to suppod Lhe
leaming of Tikanga Maori.

This kind of experlise requires a teacher to have g bit
of experience and confidence in  lheir own
understanding of other cultures, o enable them to
make such links. The teacher of Te Ao Maorn is the
perfecl person to be able to do lhis a5 she has had
experisnce teaching all kinds of cullures.

Incidental conversations often come up in class about
the different tikanga and beliefs. [t's really cool to have
sludents make these connections or be wiling to
share how their tikanga arefis the same as Tikanga
Mazori,




VISUAL ARTS

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

Embed lopic specific and acadermic vocabulary in
arl, whilst adding exiension for students where
appropriate.

In Visual Art the use of topic-specific and academic
vocabulary is embedded slrongly, while providing
extension opportunities for students who require further
challenges - notably during Perigd 8's and {unchtime
graups. This has ensured lhal sludents are not only
able to undersland and discuss key art concepls, but
also engage critically wilh their artworks!

Develop an approach that allows students in a
two year period to experience 20 and 30D
arbworks.

Yes - this year, students have had lhe opportunity o
explora both 2D and 3D artworks, foslering a
well-raunded artistic implementation of lhe NZC. This
has allowed students to experiment wilh differant
mediums, techniques, and styles, encouraging creative
arowlh and skill developrnent in divarse aristic forms,

Broaden lhe culturally responsive pedagogy used
in Visual Ans.

Our wvisual ars programme has also focussed on
specific Maon and Pasifika responsive pedagogy and
approaches. By incorporating these nrarratives for our
sludenls as well as incorporaling symbals  and
techniques relevant to their backgrounds, there have
been awesomea links made to their own culture(s). This
has helped students connect Lheir feaming to their own
experiences enrching their overall engagement.

Develop assessment capable learners in Visual
Arts through students being clear about what they
are going to leam, how and why they are going to
learn it, and how 1hey will know they have been
successful at learning.

We have worked towarnds developing
assessment-capable learners in Visual Arts. By making
it clear what students are expected to learn, how and
why they are learning it, and how they will know when
they have succeeded, we have empowered studants to
lake ownership of their learning.

To develop a well-stocked practical A Room, in
response o topics teught in Visuval Art {not
school-wide).

The Art Room is equipped with the necessary
resources specific to lhe lopics being taught. This has
created 2 supportive learning environment wheare
students have access to the tools and matenals
required for their arislic projects. The multi-engaging
malerials used has seen all modulas vse imaginative
mediurms which have been supperied through planning
and resourcing within the space.

Ensure students get opperunities to display their
completed artwark at school eg. the Staliroom
and oulside of school eg., Auckland Middle
Schoo! Arl Exhibilion, Toi Quest.

Students are given oppertunities to display (heir
completed artwork both within the school and in the
wider community. Examples include exhibilions in the
Staflroom and panicipation in external events such as
the Auckland Middle School Arl Exhibition and Toi
Quesl These platforms have provided students with the
chance to share Lheir work publicly, boosting their
confidence and sense of achievemnent in visual ars. It
was especially great to be acknowledged in the Toi
Quest this year by winning a 'Besl usa of Storytelling’
award.




X-PLO TECH

OBJECTIVES

ANALYSIS

To provide a more streamlined and efficient theary
component wilh the overall aim of creating a much
mare practical exparence for the studenis.

This has been achieved by emphasising hands-on
work as a core component of X-PLO Tech, Minimising
theory-hased instruction allows students more time for
praclical, hands-on experiences in class, enhancing
lheir engagement and skill acquisition. in addition, lhe
curriculum is adjusied regularly to provide students
with a variety of activilies that maintain their interest
and develop a range of technical skills, Each term, this
has continued to develop ta meet the needs of the
classes that are coming lhrough,

Incorporate a programme that is more inclusive of
students who struggle with mathematics while
praviding authenlic opportunities for mathemalical
development during the design process.

Providing differentiated activilies and project levels
ensures that all sludents experience success. Each
lasson is strategically planned to suppor stedents who
may require additional assislance with measuring or
maths skills. This approach enables students wilh
diverse learning needs to parlicipate fully and gain
confidence in X-PLQO Tech where they are able to use
the mathematical knowledge successfully.

To ensure that all students are made aware that
lechnology is addressing an aulhentic need using
innovation, which can apply 1o any problem
regardless of context or curriculum area,

The use of specialised lools, which are not typically
available in everyday classrooms, offers students
unique learning opparunitics. These tools enable
lhem o gain practical skills applicable not only in
X-PLO Tech but also in other areas of their lives.

To use a range of materials using a process Lhat
ensures students are developing skills lhey can
take wilh them heyond their time with us.

Through  planning, preparing, painling, cutiing,
measunng, sanding, and using various tools, studenis
acquire real-world skills thal could be used for horne
repairs or general handy-work. Teaching these
essential skills, ensures students gain bolh confidence
and competence in their practical abilities.

Display student work around the schoal,

The X-PLO Tech program could conlinue to improve,
in this particular aspect. Students are proud of their
completed projects and frequenlly choose ta take
them home. For example, the shoe bin at the Marae
was a collaborative project completed by three
students fram Room 73, showcasing their skills and
adding value to lhe communily. Additignally, photos of
sludenl projecls are displayed in Room 69, celebraling
their achievements and inspining others. Perhaps
using the Science shelving {in the hallway) could be a
greal place to showcase projects, for those sludenls
wha wish to do so.
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Introduction

This report presents an analysis of behavioural issues within our school
throughout the current year, encompassing both minor and maijor concerns that
offect our students. Key issues tdenfified include instances of social
media-retated conflicts, violations of the vaping policy, issues with gstting to class
on time and attendance, occasional physical altercations, and general disruptive
or antisocial behaviaur. These incidents have been recorded on Edge, totaling
1,953 entries this year, spanning from minor to more seriaus cases {see attached
data for detailed statistics).

Minor Behaviour lssues

. Sogigl Media Conflicts

Thankfully, social media-reloted incidents have been minimal this year.
Eariy in the year, there were o few cases, particularly affecting some femole
students, that created tensicns. However, these occurrences have since
significantly declined.

2. lateness
Lateness has been ¢ challenge across the school, affecting both the start
of the schoo! day ond transitians between classes. Gur continued efforts to
£ngoge with whanau emphasize the importance of timely ottendance, and
we aim to see considerable improvement in this area in 2025.

3. Disruptive Behaviour
Minor disruptive behoviours, often involving students mocking or specking

abusively toword one another, have been relatively common. These
interactions have sometimes led to minar physical altercations, primariky
invelving students "squaring up” rather thon engaging in fuli-fiedged fights.
While these incidents are generally minor, they disrupt the learning
environment and occasionally escolate, requiring vigilance and  swift
intervention.




Major Behaviour Issues

. Vaping Policy Violotions
While vaping incidents have decreased compored to last year, some

students still choose to disregard the school's regulotions an vaping. We
remain cormmitted to monitaring and enforcing our vaping policy to ensure
a heaithy, respectful school environment.

2. Physicol Altercations

Physicol fights within the schaal hove been relatively minimal, though each
incident is taken seriously, and preventive measures are continuously
reinforced. Our focus remains on maintaining a safe and supportive space
for oll students.

3 i-Sogi viour
Anti-sacial behaviour has been a persistent issue however we'd like to think
that the "Covid Generation” of disruptive students and anti-social
behaviours is coming to its end. However, we remain attentive and
prooctive in addressing any onti-social tendencies that emerga.

Intervention Strategies

1. Exclusionsg
This year, four students went before the Schoo! Board due to ongoing
disabedience and behoviour that led to exclusion. These cases included
one instance related to vaping and three incidents of grass misconduct.

2. Stond Downs
A total of 44 stand downs were issued this year, with o significant partion
(23) related to vaping. Other stand downs were attributed to gross
misconduct {68) and physical aitercotions (15). It is interesting to nate that
21 of the vaping-reloted incidents involved female students.



3. OpRoom
Our Op Room saw 152 occupants this year, a marked reduction from the

463 occupants recorded last year. Students were placed in the Op Room
primarily due to physical altercations or instances of verbal abuse toward
staff. The decrease reflects positively on our intervention efforts and
indicates progress toward a more disciplined environment.

4. Counseling and Support Services

Increased access to counsaling and SWiS services continues ta be
instrumental in providing students with an outlet for oddressing their
challenges. These services offer students a safe space for their voices to be
heard and gain guidonce on coping strotegies.







































4. How we have given effect to Te Tiriti o Waitangi
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6. Financial Statements

The Financial Statement in the following pages includes:

Statement of Responsibility

This statement is signed by the principal and the presiding member. It acknowledges that the school board is
responsible for the preparation and accuracy of the financial statements and states that the school board has
established and maintained a system of internal control to safeguard the assets of the school.

Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense

This statement summarises the revenue and expense of the school over the financial year. it shows whether
the school has managed to operate within the funding they have received.

Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity

This statement shows the value and movements of the Government's investment over the course of financial
year in the school, (this is known as ‘equity’) in the financial statement.

Statement of Financial Position

This statement shows everything the school owns (assets) and everything it owes (liabilities) as at 31
December 2023.

Statement of Cash Flows

This statement shows all cash received and all cash paid by the schooi over the financial year.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financia| statements provide an extra level of detail that supports the information shown in
the front of the accounts.

Independent Auditor’s Report

This report is prepared by the auditor of the school and is included in the annuai report. It provides an
opinion to the readers of the annual report whether the financial statements comply with generally accepted
accounting practice, and fairly represent the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
school.








































































MANUREWA INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL

7. Kiwisport Reporting 2024

Manurewa Intermediate has received $14,138.44 in the Kiwisport funding
initiative within our operational funding for 2024.

As per previous years, this funding has gone towards the employment of
additional staffing in the form of Learning Assistants for sports coaching and
mentoring; and for sports coaching assistance from Counties Manukau Sport. This
decision was made once again as we believed this would continue to have an
immediate and direct impact on increasing student participation in organised
sport. This proved to be accurate again as we won numerous interschool local and
national sporting events.

W owww.manurewaint.school.nz

The value of continued Kiwisport funding for the project is that the programme
becomes entrenched in the school and the community, which in turn allows for
more opportunities for students to participate in sport. This student-centered
delivery allows children to develop fundamental movement skills and basic sport
skills across a range of sports. The increase in physical activity through sport has
also highlighted a decrease in behaviour management issues.

Whilst we only received $14,138.44, we spent a lot more on this for these roles.

office@manurewaint.school.nz

lain Taylor
PRINCIPAL

* 09 266 8268 F 09 267 5633 ¢

76 Russell Road, Manurewa, Manukau 2102 ‘
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